
 

Language, visual, hearing and transportation services are available at meetings upon request. For 
requests, please call DART at 515.283.8100 at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting. 

NOTICE OF COMMISSION ANNUAL MEETING AND AGENDA 
DES MOINES AREA REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
DART MULTIMODAL ROOM, 620 CHERRY STREET/ZOOM 
DIAL IN - +1-312-626-6799/ACCESS CODE – 832 7746 1119/PASSCODE - 420110 
APRIL 1, 2025 – 12:00 PM 
 

  PAGE # 
1. CALL TO ORDER   
2. ROLL CALL AND ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM  
3. NOTICE OF MEETING  
4. APPROVAL OF APRIL 1, 2025 AGENDA  
5. PUBLIC COMMENT (Limit 3 minutes)  
6. CONSENT ITEMS   

 A. Commission Meeting Minutes – March 4, 2025 2 
 B. State Consolidated Grant Funding Application FY 2026 5 
 C. FY 2026 State PTIG Grant Application 6 
 D. June 2025 Service Change Approval 7 
 E. Title VI Program Approval 9 
 F. Computerized Wheel Alignment System Approval 68 
 G. Adsposure Contract Approval 69 
 H. February Consolidated Financials 70 

7. PUBLIC HEARING ON FY 2026 DART Budget and Tax Levy Rates 72 
 A. ACTION: Certify FY 2026 Budget and Tax Levy Rates 73 

8.  DISCUSSION ITEMS  
 A. Reimagine DART Budget Scenarios and Legislative Update 76 

9. PRESENTATION – REIMAGINE DART CONCEPTS  

 A. Jarrett Walker & Associates  77 
10. MONTHLY REPORTS (BY EXCEPTION)  

 A. Operations and Planning  78 
 I. Operations and Maintenance Facility Monthly Update 79 
 B. External Affairs  82 
 C. Human Resources/Training/Safety/Customer Service  84 
 D. Chief Executive Officer   86 
 E. Performance Report – February 2025 88 

11.   FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 94 
12. COMMISSIONER ITEMS   

 A. Special DART Commission Meeting (Reimagine) – Monday, May 19, 2025 – 12:00 
P.M.  

 B. Special DART Commission Meeting (Reimagine) – Monday, September 22, 2025 – 
12:00 P.M.   

13. NEXT MEETING:  Regular DART Meeting - Tuesday, May 6, 2025 – 12:00 P.M.   
14. ADJOURN  

 

https://ridedart.zoom.us/j/83277461119?pwd=uQ0aCIYLhC7DJX7GXFLpS4afe9ageL.1&from=addon
https://ridedart.zoom.us/j/83277461119?pwd=uQ0aCIYLhC7DJX7GXFLpS4afe9ageL.1&from=addon


DES MOINES AREA REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 
MEETING HOSTED IN-PERSON AND VIRTUALLY 
620 CHERRY STREET, DES MOINES IA  50309 
March 4, 2025 
 
(Meeting was held in a hybrid format) 
 
Commissioners/Alternates Present and Voting:  
 
Dean O’Connor, Todd Shafer, Angela McKenzie, Srikant Mikkilineni (arrived at 12.03pm), 
Connie Boesen, Paula Dierenfeld, Ross Grooters, Angela Connolly, Bridget Montgomery, 
Tom Hadden and Lauren Campbell 
 
Commissioners Absent: 
 
Andrew Borcherding and Joseph Jones 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Chair Connie Boesen called the meeting to order at 12:00 p.m. Roll call was taken, and a 
quorum was present. 
 
Notice of the meeting was duly published. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Chair Connie Boesen requested a motion to approve the agenda as presented. 
 
It was moved by Dean O’Connor and seconded by Tom Hadden to approve the March 
4, 2025, agenda. The motion carried unanimously. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
 
Heather Armstrong from Des Moines thanked Mayor Boesen and the Des Moines City 
Council for considering utilizing the franchise fee to help fund DART. She would like to see 
more service on the East 14th corridor.  
 
Garland Armstrong from Des Moines also thanked the Des Moines City council for 
consideration of the franchise fee and suggested we speak with PACE in Chicago to get 
some ideas for our transition to Reimagine.  
 
TRANSIT RIDERS ADVISORY COMMITTEE (TRAC) UPDATE 
 
Lee Jasinski. Chair of the TRAC Committee, shared that at their February 26 meeting, they 
met quorum and were provided an update on paratransit with Reimagine DART and how 
it is important to keep the service running.   
 
CONSENT ITEMS 
 
8A – Commission Meeting Minutes – January 28, 2025 
 
8B – Set FY 26 Budget Hearing Date 
 
8C – December Consolidated Financials DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 2



DES MOINES AREA REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES – MARCH 4, 2025 
 
 
8D – January Consolidated Financials 
 
8E – Bus Procurement Approval 
 
It was moved by Dean O’Connor and seconded by Todd Shafer to approve the consent 
items. The motion carried unanimously.   
 
ACTION ITEMS 
 
9A – Bus Disposal Strategy 
 
Mike Gulick, Interim Finance Lead, Senior Manager Procurement and Compliance 
provided a background on the Proterra electric buses. Information was provided on the 
vehicle performance and unfortunate mechanical failures, resulting in removing them 
from service in October 2022. On May 22, 2023, DART requested that the FTA reduce the 
buses’ useful life from 12 years to between 6 and 8 years and waive the federal interest 
burden, citing safety and financial concerns. Following Proterra’s Chapter 11 bankruptcy 
filing on Aug 7, 2023, DART filed executory contracts with the U.S. Bankruptcy Court to 
preserve its rights in the proceedings. On May 6, 2024, DART updated the request to the 
FTA to be a full waiver of the useful life of the buses and the remaining federal interest. On 
November 8, 2024, the FTA granted a waiver for the remaining useful life of the seven 
Proterra Catalyst buses. The disposal strategy was shared with the Commission with the 
primary objective to avoid any further expenditure on these buses.  
 
It was moved by Dean O’Connor and seconded by Todd Schaer to approve the bus 
disposal strategy as outlined, initiating market tests with FTA Grantees and developing 
contingency plans for broader market engagement if necessary. The motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
DISCUSSION ITEMS: 
 
10A – Reimagine DART Update 
 
Erin Hockman, Chief Strategy Officer, provide an update on the progress of Reimagine 
DART and an outline of the next steps.  
 
10B – DART Business Plan Update 
 
Amanda Wanke, Chief Financial Officer, provided an update on the DART Business Plan 
and progress so far. Additionally, Nate Bleadorn, Business Intelligence Manager, provided 
an update on the February 2025 performance report.  
 
10C – June Service Change 
 
Tony Filippini, Planning and Development Manager, provided an update on the upcoming 
June service change. 
 
10D – Title VI Program Update 
 
Tony Filippini, Planning and Development manager, provided an update on the Title VI 
program.  

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 3



DES MOINES AREA REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES – MARCH 4, 2025 
 
DEPARTMENTAL MONTHLY REPORTS (BY EXCEPTION)  
 
Chair Connie Boesen asked the Commission to refer to their packets to review the monthly 
department reports except for the CEO report. 
 
12A – Operations and Planning 
 
12B - External Affairs 
 
12C – Human Resources 
 
12D – Chief Executive Officer  
 
Amanda Wanke, Chief Executive Officer, shared about changes in commission packets  
that were made at the request of the Executive Committee, with the goal of streamlining 
and simplifying information. She also asked the commission to review the external affairs 
report for more information on the bus coalition meeting and legislative updates. 
 
12E – Performance Report – January 2025 
 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 
None  
 
COMMISSIONER ITEMS 
 
None 
 
NEXT MEETING  
 
Regular DART Meeting - Tuesday, April 1, 2025 – 12:00 P.M.  
 
ADJOURN 
 
Chair Connie Boesen adjourned the meeting at 1.01 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
            
Chair       Clerk 
 
 
            
Date 
 
 

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 4



CONSENT ITEM 
 

6B: FY2026 State of Iowa Consolidated Transit Grant Funding Application 

Action: Approve the FY2026 Consolidated State Funding Application 

Staff Resource: Mike Tiedens, Grants Program Administrator 

 

Background: 
This consolidated resolution will summarize the individual grant programs included in the annual 
State of Iowa Consolidated Transit Funding Application. The Iowa Department of Transportation’s 
Public Transit Bureau requires this resolution to be assured that the applying transit system has the 
necessary local match resources and the ability to implement the projects according to its rules 
and regulations. All the projects in the application support capital and operating projects 
identified in the FY2026 budgets. 

 

Operating: 

State Transit Assistance Formula Funds (STA) 
• The State of Iowa allocates approximately $19 million of the registration fees on new vehicle 

sales to transit; the funds are distributed annually to the 35 rural and urban public transit 
agencies in Iowa.  

• The state estimates the allotment for DART in FY2026 will be $2.31 million, an increase of 2.3% 
over the current year. DART will be applying for the funds to offset operating costs. 

5311 – Federal Rural Formula Program 
• The state distributes these federal funds annually based on populations served by DART outside 

the defined Des Moines Urbanized Area.  
• DART will be receiving $7,089 for FY2026. DART will be applying for the funds to offset paratransit 

operating costs in the non-urban portions of Polk County. 

 

Recommendation: 

• Approve the grant submission as presented and outlined above. 

 

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 5



CONSENT ITEM 
 

6C: FY2026 State Public Transit Infrastructure (PTIG) Grant Application 

Action: Approve the FY2026 PTIG Grant Application 

Staff Resource: Mike Tiedens, Grants Program Administrator 

 

Background: 
The Public Transit Infrastructure Grant (PTIG) is a program that is funded annually by the state 
legislature for the vertical infrastructure needs of Iowa’s transit systems and administered by the 
Public Transit Bureau of the Iowa Department of Transportation (DOT). The Iowa DOT requires a 
resolution to be assured that the applying transit system has the necessary local match resources 
and the ability to implement the projects according to its rules and regulations. 
Projects can involve new construction, reconstruction, and/or remodeling. Projects are evaluated 
based on the anticipated benefits to transit, as well as the ability to have projects completed 
quickly. Grant funds can cover up to 80% of project expenses. No single transit system can receive 
more than 40% of available funds in a given fiscal year. Funding for FY2026 is anticipated to be 
$1.5 million, so transit systems are eligible to apply for a maximum of $600,000. 
In the past, DART was successful in obtaining grant awards to renovate the offices of the 1100 
DART Way Operations and Maintenance facility. 
 

Project and Funding Request: 

Funding applications are due May 1 and DART is applying for $126,700 for rehab/renovation of 
the revolving doors in the lobby of DART Central Station. This award would require a local match 
of $31,680, which DART has budgeted for. 

 

Recommendation: 

• Approve the grant submission as presented and outlined above. 

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 6



CONSENT ITEM 
 

6D: June 2025 Service Change Approval 

Action: Approve Service Changes to Select Fixed Routes Effective June 15, 
2025 

Staff Resource: Tony Filippini, AICP, Planning & Development Manager 

 

Background: 

• At the end of the Des Moines Public Schools (DMPS) academic year, DART removes trips which 
specifically provide supplemental service to DMPS middle and high schools.  It is expected 
that the school year will conclude by June 14, 2025 and trips which operate on school days 
only will be removed for summer break. 

• On January 28, 2025 the DART Commission authorized the City of Grimes to withdraw from 
DART, effective June 30, 2025. Currently, Route 93 – NW 86th Express serves part of the area 
within Grimes. As a result of this decision, Route 93 will be adjusted to terminate its northern 
segment in the City of Johnston, eliminating DART services in Grimes. 

Route 93 – NW 86th Express  

• The route will terminate in the City of Johnston at NW 62nd Avenue and Crescent Chase. Trip 
times must be modified in response to the change in routing but will continue to run three 
inbound trips in the morning and four outbound trips in the afternoon, along with reverse 
commute trips. 

 
 

 

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 7



CONSENT ITEM 
6D: June Service Change Approval 
 

Title VI:  

• As required by Federal regulations and consistent with DART’s adopted Title VI Program, staff 
determined the proposed changes to not meet the threshold of a “major service change”. 
Therefore, no equity analysis is required. 

Impacts:  

• Paratransit: Paratransit service will be removed from the City of Grimes with the final day of 
service to locations within the corporate limits of the City of Grimes being Monday, June 30, 
2025. 

• Property Tax Formula: The proposed changes do not change the service tier for any DART 
member community. 

Recommendation:  

• Approve the above listed service changes to select fixed routes effective June 15, 2025.  

 

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 8



CONSENT ITEM 
 

6E Title VI Program Approval 

Action: Approve Title VI Program Update 

Staff Resource: Tony Filippini, AICP, Planning & Development Manager 

 

Background: 

• As a recipient of federal funding, DART is required to operate its programs and activities in 
accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and its amendments, collectively 
known as Title VI, which prohibit discrimination on the basis of race, color or national origin.  

• A Title VI Program must be updated every three years and submitted to the Federal Transit 
Administration (FTA) Region VII Civil Rights Officer to verify compliance.  

• The program is a comprehensive document, including the Title VI public notices, complaint 
procedures and complaint forms; a list of Title VI investigations, lawsuits and complaints; 
table of racial composition of non-elected bodies, where membership is selected by DART; 
locations of DART stations and facilities; customer demographics and travel patterns; and 
system performance measures. DART also includes its Public Participation Plan and Limited 
English Proficiency plan in its Title VI program update.  

• Material changes in this program include updates to selecting engagement methods for 
public participation to respond to current trends, updated service monitoring reports to 
cover the reporting period, and clarified policies on evaluating and providing language 
assistance.  

• DART’s last Title VI Plan update was approved by the DART Commission and accepted by 
the FTA in 2022. 

• A complete version of the Title VI Program Update is included in the meeting packet. 

Recommendation:  

• Approve the DART 2025 Title VI Program update. 

 

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 9



 

   
 

 

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 10



Des Moines Area Regional Transit Authority 
2025 Title VI Program Update   
 

2 
 

Table of Contents 
1  Introduction ............................................................................................................................................. 3 
2  General Requirements & Guidelines .................................................................................................... 4 

2.1 Annual Title VI Certification and Assurance .................................................................................. 4 
2.2  Title VI Notice .................................................................................................................................... 4 
2.3  Title VI Complaint Procedures ........................................................................................................ 5 
2.4  Record of Title VI Investigations, Complaints, and Lawsuits ........................................................ 7 

3  Public Participation Plan ........................................................................................................................ 8 
3.1  Purpose .............................................................................................................................................. 8 
3.2  Goals .................................................................................................................................................. 9 
3.3  Principles ............................................................................................................................................ 9 
3.4  Public Input Policy .......................................................................................................................... 10 
3.5  Customer Preferences ................................................................................................................... 11 
3.6  Direct Communication Methods ................................................................................................. 13 
3.7  Methods of Involving the Public ................................................................................................... 16 
3.8  Selection of meeting times and locations .................................................................................. 18 
3.9  June 2022 – March 2025 Outreach .............................................................................................. 18 
3.10  Translation and Interpretive Services ......................................................................................... 19 
3.11  DART Partners ................................................................................................................................ 20 
3.12  Equity Considerations .................................................................................................................. 21 
3.13  Outcomes ..................................................................................................................................... 21 
3.14  Conclusion .................................................................................................................................... 21 

4   Limited English Proficiency (LEP) and Language Assistance .......................................................... 23 
4.1  Four Factor Framework Analysis ................................................................................................... 23 
4.2  Implementation Plan ..................................................................................................................... 28 
4.3  Monitoring and Updating the Language Assistance Plan ........................................................ 31 

5  Racial Breakdown of Non-Elected Committees ............................................................................... 32 
6  Efforts to Ensure Subrecipient Compliance with Title VI ................................................................... 33 
7 Title VI Program-Specific Requirements for Transit Providers ............................................................ 33 

7.1  Requirements to Set Service Standards and Service Policies ................................................... 33 
7.2  Collection of Demographic Data ................................................................................................ 34 
7.3  Results of Program Monitoring and Reports ................................................................................ 36 
7.4  Public Engagement Process for Setting Major Service Change Policy, Disparate Impact 
Policy, and Disproportionate Burden Policy ...................................................................................... 44 
7.5  Major Service Change, Disparate Impact Policy, & Disproportionate Burden Policy ........... 45 
7.6  Results of Service Analysis and/or Fare Equity Analysis since Last Submission ........................ 46 

8  DART Commission Approval of Title VI Program ................................................................................ 47 
Appendices ............................................................................................................................................... 48 
 

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 11



Des Moines Area Regional Transit Authority 
2025 Title VI Program Update   
 

3 
 

1  Introduction 
 
This 2025 Title VI Program Update of the Des Moines Area Regional Transit Authority (DART) is 
offered to verify compliance with Civil Rights Act of 1964 and its amendments (42 U.S.C. §2000d), 
collectively known as Title VI, which prohibit discrimination on the basis of race, color or national 
origin in programs and activities that receive federal funds.  
 
This document has been produced consistently with the guidelines in Federal Transit 
Administration (FTA) Circular 4702.1B, effective October 1, 2012, as well as the requirements of 49 
C.F.R. § 21.23(f). Updates to this Title VI Program are submitted to the Federal Transit 
Administration Region Seven Civil Rights Officer every three years, as required by 49 CFR Section 
21.9(b). The date arranged by FTA for submittal of the DART 2025 Title VI Program Update is June 
1, 2025.  
 
DART is the regional transit authority governed by an independent commission. Effective July 1, 
2025, DART’s service area includes the following communities: Altoona, Ankeny, Bondurant, 
Clive, Des Moines, Johnston, Pleasant Hill, Unincorporated Polk County, Urbandale, West Des 
Moines, and Windsor Heights. DART operates 19 fixed local routes, 7 express routes, 2 shuttle 
routes, 1 flex route, 4 on-call routes and 1 on-demand microtransit zone. DART Paratransit 
provides both general public demand response transportation services as well as ADA 
complementary service. DART also has an extensive RideShare program that operates more 
than 23 vans throughout the region serving approximately 200 customers. The population of Des 
Moines is approximately 214,000 and the regional metro service area has a population of 
approximately 495,000. About 3.5 million unlinked passenger trips are provided annually.  
 
This 2025 Title VI Program Update has been prepared to verify that:  

• DART benefits and services supported by FTA funds are available to, and fairly distributed 
among, transit customers without regard to race, color or national origin; 

• The opportunity and ability of persons to participate in transit planning, programming 
and implementation is not limited on the basis of race, color or national origin; and 

• Any necessary corrective, remedial and affirmative actions have been taken to 
eliminate and prevent discriminatory treatment of people on the basis of race, color or 
national origin. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 12



Des Moines Area Regional Transit Authority 
2025 Title VI Program Update   
 

4 
 

2  General Requirements & Guidelines 
 
2.1 Annual Title VI Certification and Assurance 
 
DART’s Annual Title VI Certifications and Assurances are current.  The annual certificate of 
assurances submission was filed in TrAMS in 2024. 

2.2  Title VI Notice 
 
DART notifies the public of the agency’s Title VI obligations and informs the public of the 
protections against discrimination afforded by Title VI regulations. DART’s Title VI public notice is 
posted at the following locations: Onboard DART vehicles, on the DART website 
(http://www.ridedart.com), at the Customer Service window at DART Central Station, and on 
the system map brochure. 

These notices include:  

• A statement that DART operates programs without regard to race, color and national 
origin;  

• A description of how to contact DART for additional information on the recipient’s 
nondiscrimination obligations; and,  

• A description of how to file a discrimination complaint against DART.  
 
The notice is provided in English along with Spanish, an identified language exceeding the safe 
harbor threshold.  

 

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 13

http://www.ridedart.com/


Des Moines Area Regional Transit Authority 
2025 Title VI Program Update   
 

5 
 

2.3  Title VI Complaint Procedures 
 
DART has established and implemented a Title VI complaint procedure, which is available on 
the DART website at www.ridedart.com.  
 
The Customer Experience Supervisor will review and investigate every complaint promptly. 
Reasonable measures will be undertaken to preserve any information that is confidential. At a 
minimum the Customer Experience Supervisor will:  

• Identify and review all relevant documents, practices and procedures;  

• Identify and interview persons with knowledge of the Title VI violation, i.e., the person 
making the complaint; witnesses or anyone identified by the complainant; anyone who 
may have been subject to similar activity; or anyone with relevant information. 

• Upon completion of the investigation, the Customer Experience Supervisor will complete 
a final report for the DART Chief Financial Officer. If a Title VI violation is found to exist, 
remedial steps as appropriate and necessary will be taken immediately. The 
complainant will also receive a final report together with any remedial steps. The 
investigation process and final report should take no longer than twenty (20) business 
days. If no violation is found and the complainant wishes to appeal the decision, he or 
she may appeal directly to the Chief Executive Officer, DART, 620 Cherry St., Des Moines, 
Iowa, 50309.  

 
The Customer Experience Supervisor shall maintain a log of Title VI complaints received from this 
process. The log shall include the date the complaint was filed; a summary of the allegations; 
the status of the complaint; and actions taken by DART in response to the complaint. Should 
DART receive a Title VI complaint in the form of a formal charge or lawsuit, the complaint will be 
forwarded to DART’s attorney.  
 

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 14



Des Moines Area Regional Transit Authority 
2025 Title VI Program Update   
 

6 
 

The complaint forms are available for download on the website at www.ridedart.com and are 
also available at DART offices and customer service windows. The forms are available in English, 
Spanish, Vietnamese, Arabic, Serbo-Croatian and Swahili.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 15



Des Moines Area Regional Transit Authority 
2025 Title VI Program Update   
 

7 
 

2.4  Record of Title VI Investigations, Complaints, and Lawsuits 
 
DART maintains a record of all Title VI investigations, complaints and lawsuits.  
 
No Title VI investigations, complaints or lawsuits have been received since the submission of the 
last DART Title VI Program. 
 

File Date Summary of Complaint Summary of Findings Actions 
Taken Close Date 

None None None None None 

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 16



Des Moines Area Regional Transit Authority 
2025 Title VI Program Update   
 

8 
 

3  Public Participation Plan 
3.1  Purpose 
 
The Des Moines Area Regional Transit Authority (DART) encourages timely public involvement 
and participation and strives to deliver information, services and programs that reflect 
community values and benefit all segments of the community. DART developed this Public 
Participation Plan to ensure all members of the public, including minority and limited English 
proficient populations, have meaningful opportunities to participate in DART’s decision-making 
process.   
  
DART’s public engagement strategies are designed to 
provide community members with effective access to 
information about DART services and to provide a 
variety of methods for receiving and considering public 
comment prior to implementing changes to services. 
DART also recognizes the importance of engaging many 
types of stakeholders in the decision-making process, 
including other units of government, metropolitan area 
agencies, community-based organizations, major 
employers, passengers and the general public, including 
low-income, minority, limited English proficient, and 
other traditionally underserved populations.   
  
As a recipient of federal funding and, pursuant to Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Title VI 
regulatory guidance, DART should therefore seek out and consider the viewpoints of minority 
and low-income populations, as well as individuals who do not speak English fluently “in the 
course of conducting public outreach and involvement activities.” (FTA Circular 4702.1B) 
Additionally, the funding recipient should offer “early and continuous opportunities for the public 
to be involved in the identification of social, economic and environmental impacts of proposed 
transportation decisions at DART.”  
 
DART may modify its public participation methods over time based on feedback from its 
customers and the general public. The Plan is a “living” document that is updated periodically 
to reflect community preferences, changing demographics and transit services, as well as to 
respond to new communication and outreach methods.  
 
Regulations and Policies Relevant to DART’s Public Participation Plan 
DART functions under a wide variety of federal and state requirements. This list 
provides an overview of the basic laws and regulations DART operates within: 

• Federal Requirements: 
o Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 
o Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 
o Executive Order 13166 -- Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited 

English Proficiency 
o National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) 

• State of Iowa Requirements: 
o Open Public Meetings Act 
o Public Records Act 

 

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 17



Des Moines Area Regional Transit Authority 
2025 Title VI Program Update   
 

9 
 

3.2  Goals 
 
The Public Participation Plan endeavors to promote meaningful opportunities for the public, 
including low income, minority, and limited English proficient populations, to be involved in 
identifying potential impacts of DART’s proposed transportation decisions.  
 
The specific goals of DART’s public engagement efforts include:  

• Transparency – The process should clearly identify and communicate where and how 
participants can have influence and directly impact decision-making. 

• Participation – DART customers and members of the public should have ample 
opportunity to participate in key decisions, such as having multiple options for how they 
receive critical information and share feedback.  
 

• Accessibility – Every effort is made to ensure that opportunities to participate are 
physically, geographically, temporally and linguistically accessible. 
 

• Diversity of input – Participants represent a range of socioeconomic, ethnic and cultural 
perspectives, with representative participants including residents from low-income 
neighborhoods, ethnic communities and residents with limited English proficiency, and 
other traditionally underserved populations.  

3.3  Principles 
 
Public participation at DART is based on the following principles:  

• Proactive and Timely – Participation methods should allow for early involvement and be 
ongoing and proactive so participants can influence decisions.  

• Tailored – DART’s public participation methods should be tailored to match local and 
cultural preferences as much as possible.  

• Authentic and Meaningful – DART should support public participation as a dynamic and 
meaningful activity that requires teamwork and commitment at all levels of the 
organization. 

• Clarity in potential for influence – DART should communicate to those giving input the 
factors weighing on the decisions, so they understand the potential for influence. In 
addition, staff should communicate the results of the public‘s input in terms of the impact 
on decisions at a broad summary level, providing major themes, the decisions reached 
and rationale for the decisions.  
 

The recommendations in the Public Participation Plan reflect feedback from DART customers 
and the public, as well as best practices in the field. Information on customer preferences was 
collected primarily through a survey conducted in fall 2022. DART staff analyzed the survey 
results based on self-reported demographic information to cater recommendations to the 
expressed preferences of respondents who are low-income or from marginalized communities. 
DART also has close relationships with many human service organizations that provide feedback 
on how DART can best communicate with the populations they serve.  
 
 
 

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 18



Des Moines Area Regional Transit Authority 
2025 Title VI Program Update   
 

10 
 

3.4  Public Input Policy 
 
The methods described in the Public Participation Plan cover a range of ways in which DART 
engages with its customers and the general public. However, DART understands that decisions 
about budgets as well as changes to services or fares are of particular importance. DART, 
therefore, has the following guidelines when considering such changes:  
 
Major Service Changes and Fare Changes 
 
DART will conduct public input on major service changes and fare changes. A major service 
change is defined as when 25 percent or more of a route’s revenue hours or revenue miles is 
added or reduced, or when the total revenue hours for the system are expanded or reduced by 
10 percent or more. 
 
Major service changes and fare changes will meet the following public input requirements: 

• Changes will be published for public review and comment no less than 60 days before 
the proposed changes are implemented.   
 

• The public will have an opportunity to provide feedback through at least two of the top 
five methods for providing feedback preferred by customers, as highlighted in Section 
5.2.  

 
• Public comment is always welcome at regularly 

scheduled DART Commission meetings. 
 
• A notice of the final changes will be posted at least 

15 days before the changes are implemented. 
 
• Notification methods may include on-board 

printed, digital and audio announcements, posted 
notices at DART Central Station or affected bus 
stops, and various forms of digital communication. 

 
• The DART Commission must be given a verbal and/or written summary of public input 

results and approve all significant changes. 
 

In the event the DART Commission approves a comprehensive fare policy that involves multiple 
phases or implementations of fare or service adjustments over a period of time, DART reserves 
the right to modify this public comment process. 
 
Budget and Tax Levy Changes 
DART’s annual budget and any associated tax levy changes will have a scheduled public 
hearing at a DART Commission Meeting.  The public hearing will be advertised per Iowa Code, 
not more than 20 (twenty) days and not less than 10 (ten) days in advance. 
 
 

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 19



Des Moines Area Regional Transit Authority 
2025 Title VI Program Update   
 

11 
 

3.5  Customer Preferences 
 
Customer Profile 
DART understands the importance of tailoring communication and public participation 
techniques to the preferences of intended audiences. For most aspects of service planning and 
communication about DART’s services, the primary audience is DART customers. In order to 
understand who DART’s customers are, the following information was collected as part of a 
customer satisfaction survey: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 20



Des Moines Area Regional Transit Authority 
2025 Title VI Program Update   
 

12 
 

Preferred Customer Communication Techniques 

 
In fall 2022, DART conducted a survey of its customers on all fixed routes to gauge various 
aspects of customer satisfaction and preferences. Questions asked included how customers 
prefer to receive important updates from DART, how they prefer to share feedback with DART, 
as well as demographic information, such as race and household income. The survey resulted in 
825 unique responses, and a statistically significant sample size for the system as a whole and on 
each DART route.  
 
The survey revealed the top five methods DART customers prefer to receive important service 
updates are:  

1. DART website 
2. Printed signs at DART bus stops 
3. Bus audio announcements 
4. Posters and signs at DART Central Station 
5. Printed on-board brochures (hangtags) printed in English 

and Spanish 
Other response options included emails from DART, interior/exterior 
bus ads, public meetings, Facebook, Twitter, Instagram, and 
member city communications, which collectively represented 30% 
of all responses.  
 
DART analyzed the responses from minority (45% of respondents) 
and low-income (54% of respondents) and found that the same top 
five methods for receiving information were preferred by these sub-
groups of DART customers.  
 
Additionally, the survey revealed the top five methods DART 
customers prefer to share feedback with DART are:  

1. Online surveys 
2. Printed surveys 
3. Emailing DART 
4. Calling Customer Service 
5. In-person public meetings 

 
Other response options included online public meetings, Facebook, 
Twitter and Instagram, which collectively represented 15% of 
responses.  
 
DART analyzed the responses from minority (45% of respondents) 
and low-income (54% of respondents) customers and found that the 
same top five methods for sharing feedback with DART were 
preferred by these sub-groups of customers.  
 
DART also analyzed the responses from separate surveys of 
paratransit and Caravan (formerly known as Rideshare) customers. While a much smaller 
proportion of DART’s customers, tailoring communications about these programs to the formats 
preferred by established customers should improve participation rates.  
 

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 21



Des Moines Area Regional Transit Authority 
2025 Title VI Program Update   
 

13 
 

• Paratransit customers have similar preferences for receiving information and 
sharing feedback as fixed-route customers (described above), with the exception that 
Paratransit customer have a stronger preference for interpersonal forms of 
communication, such as calling DART or receiving emails from DART.  
 
• Caravan customers strongly prefer electronic forms of communication, such as 
receiving emails from DART or visiting DART’s website.  

 
The customer preferences described above were used to guide the methods described in this 
public participation plan. Additionally, the tabular results of the surveys can be analyzed by bus 
route, member community and demographics in order to tailor communication with specific 
subgroups of customers as needed.  

3.6  Direct Communication 
Methods 
 
The Public Participation Plan identifies a menu 
of available methods for providing information 
to DART customers and the public. While these 
communication methods allow DART to 
broadcast information widely, they also are 
important tools in reaching minority and limited 
English proficient populations, who identified 
these methods as ways they want to receive 
relevant information. Communications methods 
include:  
  

• DART’s website* – DART’s website, www.ridedart.com, is one of the primary sources of 
information for DART riders. Several tools are available within the site to communicate 
changes in service, as well as to notify the public of opportunities to participate in DART’s 
decision-making process. These include “news items” that appear as short summaries on 
the home page and, when selected, can lead to longer news items, including meeting 
schedules and links to route maps, surveys, etc. DART’s website translates into more than 
100 languages. 
 

• On-board newsletters or “hangtags” * – These are printed materials with round cutouts 
(shaped like “Do Not Disturb” door hangers at hotels) that hang from the handlebars on 
buses. They are printed on both sides, with English on one side and Spanish on the other 
side. Their size can increase with additional folding panels, depending on the amount of 
information. They are a highly visible and effective means of communicating directly 
with DART riders.    

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 22

http://www.ridedart.com/


Des Moines Area Regional Transit Authority 
2025 Title VI Program Update   
 

14 
 

 
 

• On-board audio announcements* – DART’s Automatic Vehicle Location System has the 
capability of scheduling automatic audio announcements on buses. These 
announcements can be scheduled on all routes, or single routes, and can be triggered 
by location on a route or on regularly timed intervals. Announcements can be recorded 
in both English and Spanish.  
 

• Emails to DART email subscribers (customers) – These electronic communications are 
sent out via DART’s mass email subscription service. Customers can sign up on DART’s 
website to receive emails from DART. Staff has the flexibility to target email 
communications to subgroups of DART riders, such as those on a particular route. Staff 
can also elect to send an email to all email subscribers. 

 
• Emails to partners – These electronic communications can be sent out from staff 

members’ email accounts, as well as through DART’s mass email program. Similar to 
mailers, these can include informational letters, as well as resources for partners to share 
information with their networks, such as newsletter copy, social media posts and fliers.  

 
• Press releases – Press releases are aimed at generating news coverage of DART events, 

changes, meetings, etc.  They are distributed via email to DART’s media contact list, as 
well as posted on the Press Releases page of DART’s website.   

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 23



Des Moines Area Regional Transit Authority 
2025 Title VI Program Update   
 

15 
 

• Community newsletters – DART has several partners in the community that publish 
newsletters, including several member governments. DART can provide articles to these 
partners for publication in their newsletters.   
 

 Ads on buses and bus shelters – Overhead advertisements can be posted inside DART’s 
buses. Additionally, printed advertisements can be posted on the sides of DART’s bus 
shelters.  
 

• Posters at DART Central Station and bus stops – Printed posters can be posted around 
DART Central Station, including designated news bulletin areas within the waiting area, 
using sandwich boards on the platform and at the Customer Service window. Flyers can 
also be posted at specific bus stops. 
 

• Mailers to partners – These printed materials can be distributed via mail to DART’s 
partners. They can include letters to key staff at these locations, as well as posters or 
other materials for them to distribute at their offices. 

 
• Paid advertisements – DART can pay for advertisements in local publications (Des 

Moines Register, Axios, Business Record, Black Iowa News, etc.), in community 
newsletters and on local broadcast channels (radio and TV), reaching both broad and 
targeted audiences. DART can also advertise public input opportunities through social 
media and as digital ads on websites. 

 
• Paid ads in non-English media* – DART can publish paid advertisements in non-English 

newspapers, magazines, websites and radio stations to reach a wider span of the 
population.   

 
• Public notices – These are published in the daily newspaper of record, The Des Moines 

Register, and are also posted on DART’s website.  
  
 

  

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 24



Des Moines Area Regional Transit Authority 
2025 Title VI Program Update   
 

16 
 

• DART’s Social Media Platforms – DART staff uses 
several social media accounts to interact with 
riders and share information regarding service 
changes and opportunities for the public to 
participate in DART’s decision-making process. 
DART has accounts on Facebook, X, Instagram 
and LinkedIn, but primarily uses Facebook to 
publish important information for riders and 
partners.  
 

• DART Technology Tools – MyDART Tools that 
allow customers to book and plan trips can also 
be used to send alerts and automated 
messages.  

 
* All communication methods are available for 

translation or interpretation upon request.   
 
 
 

3.7  Methods of Involving the Public 
 
DART employs several methods for involving the public in DART’s decision-making process. Staff 
consider many factors when designing public outreach, such as the magnitude of the proposed 
change or decision, what level of influence public opinion has on the decision, and who will be 
impacted by the decision. As cited above, DART customer surveys indicate that minority and 
low-income populations have similar preferences to DART riders as a whole in how they provide 
input.  
 
DART’s public involvement methods include: 
 

• Public Meetings – A public meeting is an opportunity for DART to present information 
about a proposed change or upcoming decision and collect feedback from interested 
parties, often including riders. DART staff typically present an overview of the proposed 
change and then answer questions and hear feedback from participants. These 
meetings can be held in-person at DART Central Station, at a transit-accessible location 
in a member community, virtually using Zoom or a similar online meeting software, or a 
hybrid approach that allows attendees to attend in-person or login through a virtual 
platform. DART staff considers audience and other factors, such as high levels of illness in 
the community, before deciding what format a meeting will be held in. A public 
meeting is NOT required by federal regulations and comments do not go into the public 
record.   
 

• Public Hearings – A public hearing is required by federal or state regulations where 
comments from the public go into the public record. A public hearing is governed by 
rules concerning who speaks when and for how long and is overseen by a DART official. 
A public hearing is NOT a question-and-answer format.  

 
• Grab-and-Go Events – DART will staff informational tables at community events and at 

DART Central Station to share information about changes to service, new initiatives or 

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 25



Des Moines Area Regional Transit Authority 
2025 Title VI Program Update   
 

17 
 

community resources. These events allow DART to interact with a wide variety of 
community members for a shorter time span. 

 
• Partnerships with Community-Based Organizations – To ensure feedback from specific 

populations or groups, DART may provide a small amount of funding and materials to 
support community-based organizations (mostly nonprofits) in gathering public input 
from the clients they serve and/or their broader networks. This process aims to honor the 
trusting relationships their staff already has with community members and the time and 
resources organizations dedicate to helping DART with its public input efforts. 
Community-based organizations can decide the best ways to reach their networks, such 
as having conversations during case-management meetings, sending emails or 
distributing a survey during a group meeting.  

 
• Open House – DART hosts Open House events, which allow the public to attend and visit 

specific stations to meet with DART staff and provide feedback. The nature of this type of 
event allows flexibility for attendees, permitting them to come and leave at any time 
during the scheduled time. Open House events can be held in-person at DART Central 
Station, at a transit accessible location in a member community, or virtually using Zoom 
or a similar online meeting software. DART staff considers audience and other factors, 
such as high levels of illness in the community, before deciding what format an Open 
House will be held in. Open Houses are NOT required by federal regulations and 
comments do not go into the public record. 

 
• Surveys – Surveys contain a series of specific questions, often in multiple-choice format, 

and can be distributed in print and/or digital form. The results from surveys can be 
quantified and analyzed, but are not as conducive to broader, more open-ended 
discussions.  

 
• Focus Groups – At times, the complexity of a project, issue or needed input may require 

engaging specific audiences of stakeholders where more in-depth discussion and 
feedback can occur. Focus groups generally work better if held in-person but can be 
conducted through a virtual format, like Zoom. 
 

• DART Commission Meetings – The Board of Commissioners typically meets the first 
Tuesday of each month at 12:00 p.m. at DART Central Station, 620 Cherry Street, Des 
Moines, IA, 50309. These meetings are open to the public to attend in-person and also 
may be available online via Zoom and include an opportunity at the beginning of the 
meeting for the public to comment on any item relating to transit.  
 

• Public Comment Cards – Public comment cards are open-ended questionnaires that 
can be distributed in print and/or digital form. Comments from comment cards are 
valuable for open-ended discussions, although they are not as easy to quantify or 
analyze.   

 
• General Comments – DART is always open to and accepting of public comments, 

regardless of whether they were given as part of an organized effort. Comments can be 
shared with DART by phone at 515-283-8100, by email at dart@ridedart.com, via a 
comment form on DART’s website at ridedart.com, in-person at DART Central Station, or 
by mail at 620 Cherry Street, Des Moines, Iowa, 50309. 
 

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 26



Des Moines Area Regional Transit Authority 
2025 Title VI Program Update   
 

18 
 

3.8  Selection of meeting times and locations 
 
Selecting meeting times and locations that are convenient for target audiences is crucial to 
providing meaningful opportunities for public participation. For example, meeting 
announcements for service changes should be shared with the public on-board buses and 
through digital platforms; they should be held not only in the early afternoon but also in the late 
afternoon or early evening; and they should be held at locations in downtown Des Moines, as 
well as regional locations such as suburban and Des Moines library locations. 
  

3.9  June 2022 – March 2025 Outreach 
 
DART’s outreach for its long-range planning, major service changes and other changes 
impacting riders and the public included the following activities: 
 

• DART hosted three virtual and in-person public meetings between May 24-26, 2022, to 
collect input on changes to service in West Des Moines, including re-routing one local 
route and discontinuing service on one local route to replace it with a new microtransit 
zone. These meetings were promoted in English and Spanish on buses and in signage 
posted at DART Central Station. English language promotion of these meetings also 
included emails to rider, social media posts and posts to DART’s website. DART staff 
members were periodically available on buses during the month of May to discuss the 
proposed changes with riders and collect their feedback.  
 

• DART collected feedback on a major service change in Des Moines and West Des 
Moines between January 12-18, 2023. The service change included making changes to 
two local routes and adding two new microtransit zones. DART hosted three public 
meetings and offered print and digital surveys to members of the public. To promote 
the meetings and survey opportunities, DART shared signs and on-bus audio 
announcements in English and Spanish.   

 
• DART collected significant public input from mid-

November through mid-December 2023 on a possible 
40% cut in service in the City of Des Moines. DART sought 
input on the public’s desire to increase funding to 
maintain public transit service, as well as how riders 
would be impacted by service cuts. DART held a public 
meeting in each of Des Moines’ four wards, as well as an 
open house at DART Central Station and a virtual 
meeting on Zoom. DART also provided a survey in digital 
and print formats. Public input opportunities were 
promoted widely, including signs, newsletters, audio 
announcements, and emails directed to riders; toolkits 
shared with partners to distribute; radio and digital 
advertising reaching Latino and Black communities; and 
boosted social media posts to neighborhoods 
surrounding public input meetings. DART provided fliers 
in English, Spanish, Vietnamese and Arabic. 

 

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 27



Des Moines Area Regional Transit Authority 
2025 Title VI Program Update   
 

19 
 

• An online survey was open for two weeks starting November 6, 2023, for riders to 
provide input on realigning a portion of one route. The survey was promoted on DART’s 
website, in two emails directed to riders of the route and in a toolkit sent to the city’s 
government and chamber of commerce.  

 
• DART held one public meeting on May 28, 2024, to collect feedback on a proposed 

fare increase for DART On Demand, DART’s microtransit service. In addition to the 
meeting, print and digital surveys were offered to the public in English and Spanish. 

 
• In September 2024, DART gathered public input on proposed changes to four local 

routes and discontinuing a free shuttle in downtown Des Moines. DART held one in-
person meeting and one virtual meeting between September 19-25, 2024, and 
distributed print and digital surveys to the public in English and Spanish. The two 
meetings and surveys were promoted in English and Spanish on buses and in signage 
posted at DART Central Station. English language promotion of the meetings and 
surveys also included emails to riders, emails to stakeholders, social media posts and 
posts on DART’s website. 
 

• DART held one virtual public meeting on November 14, 2024, to collect feedback on 
proposed changes to one express route and DART’s mobility service zone following the 
City of Grimes’ decision to withdraw from DART in summer 2025. The meeting was 
promoted in both English and Spanish through on-bus audio announcements and signs 
posted at bus stops in Grimes and the adjacent city of Johnston. Comment cards were 
mailed with a letter to more than 50 affected riders living in Grimes or using mobility 
services in that city. 
 

• Public hearings on DART’s budget process were held annually in either March or April. 
 

Participation in public input opportunities can vary significantly depending on the type of 
change DART is considering and how broadly the opportunities are promoted. For example, 
during public input on possible service cuts, DART had significant attendance at public meetings 
(253 individuals over six meetings) and a high response rate to an online and print survey (1,136 
responses). Public input meetings for other service changes have had minimal attendance 
(about 3-7 members of the public).  
 
Mailing comment cards and sharing a link to an online survey have resulted in more 
participation than in-person meetings in several instances. DART has also found that paid 
promotion of public meetings on social media, bus audio announcements, signs at bus stops, 
and working with community-based organizations have led to higher participation. Also, DART 
found that having technical staff available at engagement events, in addition to customer 
service and communications staff, can allow for more detailed conversations with customers 
and members of the public. 

 

3.10  Translation and Interpretive Services 
 
Providing translation and interpretive services is critical to the success of the Public Participation 
Plan in reaching minority and limited English proficient populations. DART provides translation 
and interpretive services upon request: 

• At the customer service window,  
• over the phone,  
• at public meetings, and  

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 28



Des Moines Area Regional Transit Authority 
2025 Title VI Program Update   
 

20 
 

• for important documents. 
 

For example, DART contracts with a firm called CTS Language Link to provide interpretation 
services in over 240 languages to customers upon request. These services can be accessed by 
phone or at the customer service window at DART Central Station. Additionally, DART makes 
interpretation services available at its public meetings to anyone who requests them. The 
interpretation services are publicized in meeting notices. 
 
Most applications available on DART’s website and from DART Customer Service are in English 
and Spanish, and DART will provide documents in other languages upon request. In addition, on 
bus communications about public meetings, including bus audio announcements and hangtag 
newsletters are provided in both English and Spanish. DART translates some public meeting fliers 
in other languages, such as Arabic, based on needs identified by riders and partner 
organizations. 
 
More details about DART’s strategy and resources to ensure that language is not a barrier for 
people to take full advantage of DART’s services can be found in DART’s Language Assistance 
Plan.    
 

3.11  DART Partners 
 
DART utilizes a network of local partners to enhance its reach within the community.   
 

• DART can “amplify” its messages by routing them through partners’ communication 
networks, thereby reaching more minority and limited English proficient populations. 
These messages include:  

• Valuable information about DART’s services 
• Opportunities to participate in DART’s decision-making process   

 
• DART can consult with these partners’ staff and clients on:  

• Transportation needs  
• Solutions to potential or real issues  

 
DART counts more than 200 organizations, businesses and other government agencies among its 
list of partners. These organizations span the following categories (a complete list of partners can 
be found in Appendix A):  

• Youth centers  
• Rehabilitation centers  
• Agencies serving low-income individuals  
• Refugee resettlement agencies  
• Human rights organization  
• Shelters  
• Community action centers  
• Correctional facilities  
• Agencies for people with disabilities   
• Residential properties 
• Corporate partners  
• Pass sales outlets  
• Member governments  
• State government agencies  
• Federal government agencies  

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 29



Des Moines Area Regional Transit Authority 
2025 Title VI Program Update   
 

21 
 

• Neighborhood associations 
 
In particular, these DART partners may provide valuable avenues for reaching minority and 
limited English proficient populations.  
 

3.12  Equity Considerations 
 
DART recognizes that minority and low-income populations have historically been systematically 
excluded from participating in public decision-making. Due to persistent societal and cultural 
influences, ensuring diverse public participation in DART’s decision-making can be difficult, 
despite the concerted efforts described in this plan. DART therefore recognizes the need to think 
carefully about how to design inclusive outreach processes and to build in measures that 
consider whether a public participation process and its outcomes are achieving the intended 
results.  
 
DART staff will utilize the following considerations developed as part of the Capital Crossroads 
program, a collaborative vision for improving Central Iowa, to evaluate the racial equity 
implications of key decisions:  

• Have a variety of ethnic communities/people of color been informed, meaningfully 
involved and authentically represented in this process/decisions? 

• How has this been done?    
• How has the feedback been considered, incorporated and lifted up?    
• What challenges have we faced in hearing that voice?  

• Is there a group that benefits more than another because of this process/decision?  

• What could be one unintended consequence of this process/decision for ethnic 
communities/communities of color? 

• What action will be implemented to advance equity in this process/decision? 

 

3.13  Outcomes  
 
The outcomes of public participation will be reported in an open and transparent manner. The 
expectation is that DART will follow-up with community members after they have participated in 
the process to inform them how their participation influenced the outcome. DART should be 
able to demonstrate that it explored the public’s suggestions and recommendations and 
considered that feedback as part of the process. 
 

3.14  Conclusion 
 
This Public Participation Plan must, first and foremost, be accountable to the public. The strategic 
approach, goals and guiding principles DART has established are intended to foster public 
participation by providing early, continuous and meaningful public engagement opportunities 
for its stakeholders regardless of race, color or national origin, including populations and 
individuals who may be underserved because of limited English proficiency, racial or 
socioeconomic status, or disability. The methods and techniques employed by DART help 
increase public participation rates, particularly among those individuals and populations that 
are often overlooked or underrepresented.  

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 30



Des Moines Area Regional Transit Authority 
2025 Title VI Program Update   
 

22 
 

 
While the methods and techniques used during the public participation process may vary 
according to each circumstance, DART will make every effort to achieve the standards it has set 
and to design public outreach efforts with the goal of most effectively reaching out to the 
diverse populations throughout DART’s service area. As a living document, the Plan may evolve 
according to the demographic makeup of DART’s communities and their unique needs, as well 
as DART’s evaluation of its public participation effectiveness. 

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 31



Des Moines Area Regional Transit Authority  
2025 Title VI Program Update   
 

23 
 

4   Limited English Proficiency (LEP) and Language 
Assistance 

4.1  Four Factor Framework Analysis 
 
This plan utilizes the four-factor analysis of an individualized assessment described in the FTA 
guidance publication of December 14, 2005, entitled “Implementing the Department of 
Transportation’s Policy Guidance Concerning Recipients’ Responsibilities to Limited English 
Proficient (LEP) Persons: A Handbook for Public Transportation Providers.” 
 
In accordance with this guidance, this section examines each of the following factors to 
determine the level and extent of language assistance measures required to sufficiently ensure 
meaningful access to public transit services within DART’s service area. These factors are: 

• Factor 1: Proportion, Numbers and Distribution of LEP Persons in DART’s Service Area 

• Factor 2: Frequency of Contact with LEP Persons 

• Factor 3: Nature and Importance of DART Services to LEP Persons 

• Factor 4: Resources Available to DART and Overall Cost 
 
Factor 1: Proportion, Numbers and Distribution of LEP Persons in DART’s Service 
Area 
The U.S. Census Bureau has a range of 4 classifications of how well people speak English. The 
classifications are ‘very well,’ ‘well,’ ‘not well,’ and ‘not at all.’ Consistent with federal guidance, 
this plan considers people who are reported by the Census to speak English less than “very well” 
as Limited English Proficient persons. 
 
 Service Area Boundaries 

DART’s service area is primarily Polk County; however some community boundaries do slightly 
spill over into adjacent counties.  For this analysis, only Polk County boundaries will be used.  
DART member communities as of July 1, 2025 include: 

• Altoona  

• Ankeny 

• Bondurant 

• Clive  

• Des Moines 

• Johnston 

• Polk County 

• Pleasant Hill 

• Urbandale  

• West Des Moines 

• Windsor Heights  

    
 Analysis of Language Related Population Data 

Language Spoken at Home 

Analysis of the 2019-2023 American Community Survey variable S1601, Language Spoken at 
Home 5-Year estimates data for Polk County presented in Table A shows that the proportion of 
residents within the DART service area who may be considered LEP is 6.4 percent. Of the 
population 5 years of age or older in Polk County, 14.6 percent speak a language other than 
English at home, with 43.6 percent of that population speaking English less than “very well.” 
 

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 32



Des Moines Area Regional Transit Authority  
2025 Title VI Program Update   
 

24 
 

TABLE A: 
 

S1601| Language Spoken at Home (5 Years and Over) 
 

LANGUAGE SPOKEN AT HOME 
(5 YEARS AND OVER) ESTIMATE PERCENT 

English only  396,858 85.4% 

Language other than English 67,638 14.6% 

Speak English less than “very well” 29,503 6.4% 

Spanish 32,012 6.9% 

Speak English less than “very well” 13,302 2.9% 

Other Indo-European Languages 10,467 2.3% 

Speak English less than “very well” 3,835 0.8% 

Asian and Pacific Islander Languages 15,348 3.3% 

Speak English less than “very well” 7,834 1.7% 

Other Languages 9,811 2.1% 

Speak English less than “very well” 4,532 1.0% 

TOTAL 464,496 100% 

 
Safe Harbor Languages 

In addition to the sources shown in Table A, DART also analyzed individual languages as 
reported by 2019-2023 American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates for variable B16001, 
Language Spoken at Home by Ability to Speak English for the Population 5 Years and Over, to 
better assess which languages meet the threshold of the Safe Harbor provision. DART 
determined that a language meets the threshold if there are over 1,000 people estimated to 
speak the language less than “very well” in Polk County. Some language families with over 1,000 
less than “very well” speakers may have been omitted if DART does not have the means to 
reasonably assess whether one predominant language in the group meets the threshold. 
Additional relevant data sources such as school district ELL (English Language Learner) program 
enrollment or DART half-fare card applications may supplement ACS data if they help identify 
individual languages within a language group that may meet the threshold, such as Swahili. The 
Safe Harbor Languages in DART’s service area are: 

• Spanish (13,302) 

• Vietnamese (2,074) 

• Swahili (1,935) 

• Serbo-Croatian (1,574) 

• Arabic (1,254) 

 

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 33



Des Moines Area Regional Transit Authority  
2025 Title VI Program Update   
 

25 
 

A. Limited English Speaking Households 

According to the US Census Bureau, a "limited English speaking household" is one in which no 
member 14 years old and over (1) speaks only English or (2) speaks a non-English language and 
speaks English "very well." In other words, all members 14 years old and over have at least some 
difficulty with English. By definition, English-only households cannot belong to this group. Previous 
Census Bureau data products have referred to these households as "linguistically isolated" and 
"Household where no one age 14 and over speaks English only or speaks English ‘very well.’" In 
2023 ACS 5-Year estimates, shown in Table B below, Polk County has 202,404 total households, 
and of the limited English speaking households Spanish is the most prevalent.  
 

TABLE B: 
 

Limited English Speaking Households 
 

LIMITED ENGLISH SPEAKING TOTAL PERCENT 

English 152,889 87.5% 

Spanish 12,270 6.1% 

Limited English Speaking 2,765 1.4% 

Not Limited English Speaking 9,505 4.7% 

Other Indo-European languages 5,274 2.6% 

Limited English Speaking 1,106 0.5% 

Not Limited English Speaking 4,168 2.1% 

Asian and Pacific Island language: 6,783 3.4% 

Limited English Speaking 1,934 1.0% 

Not Limited English Speaking 4,849 2.4% 

Other languages 4,010 2.0% 

Limited English Speaking 1,156 0.6% 

Not Limited English Speaking 2,854 1.4% 

TOTAL 202,404 100% 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 34



Des Moines Area Regional Transit Authority  
2025 Title VI Program Update   
 

26 
 

 Des Moines Public Schools 

Another way that DART analyzes the language diversity of the communities it serves is by 
reviewing student enrollment data. The Des Moines Public School district is the largest in Polk 
County and by far the most diverse.  Data retrieved from the district shows that as of 2024-2025 
school year, approximately 7,700 students are enrolled in the district’s English Language Learners 
(ELL) program. This program is designed for students learning English as a second language. With 
nearly 31,000 students enrolled district-wide, about one in four students in the district is enrolled in 
the ELL program. Approximately 7,000 students in Des Moines Public Schools speak Spanish, and 
about 68% are enrolled in the ELL Program, indicating that only 32% of students who primarily 
speak Spanish at home also have English speaking proficiency. Though there are over 100 
different languages spoken in households within the Des Moines Public School District, the top 4 
primary languages for students enrolled within the school system’s ELL program are ranked in the 
following order:  

• Spanish (4,794 students) 

• Karen Languages (707 students) 

• Swahili (932 students) 

• Nilo-Saharan (366 students) 

 Summary 

In using the above census data as well as information from the Des Moines Public School District, 
DART has determined that the greatest non-English language need in the community is Spanish, 
and therefore DART should focus its language assistance efforts on this sub-population. 
Additionally, the community that DART serves is ethnically and linguistically diverse, and DART 
should also consider how to provide appropriate language assistance to these groups as well.  
 
Factor 2: Frequency of Contact of LEP Persons 
Employees of DART are in contact with LEP persons on a daily basis. The most frequent type of 
encounter is between bus driver and passenger. The second most frequent contact is via 
telephone on the DART Schedule Information line.  Other points of contact include: 

• Walk-in customers and assistance from operations staff at DART Central Station 

• Public hearings and meetings with community-based organizations 

• Agency training sessions, providing education on how to ride and service information 
 
DART staff and community partners were consulted in the development of this plan to ensure that 
the languages focused on and the methods described in this plan are consistent with their front-
line experience serving customers and the general public.  

 
DART monitors the languages spoken by refugee persons applying for “Half Fare” ID cards, which 
allow them to ride DART’s services for less than half the cost of a full fare. The following table is a 
breakdown of languages spoken by refugees that obtained one of the 960 “Half Fare” IDs made 
between June 2022 and February 2025. 
 

Language Number Percent of Total 
Acholi 1 0.07% 
Arabic 159 10.81% 
Belin 1 0.07% 

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 35



Des Moines Area Regional Transit Authority  
2025 Title VI Program Update   
 

27 
 

Language Number Percent of Total 
Burmese 17 1.16% 
Burundi 5 0.34% 
Chin 13 0.88% 
Dari 100 6.80% 
Dinka 15 1.02% 
English 88 5.98% 
Haka 1 0.07% 
Karen 20 1.36% 
Karenni 3 0.20% 
Kibembe 29 1.97% 
Kinyabwisha 2 0.14% 
Kinyamulenge 44 2.99% 
Kinyarwanda 32 2.18% 
Kirundi 5 0.34% 
Kiswahili 106 7.21% 
Kunama 24 1.63% 
Nepali 18 1.22% 
Nuba 1 0.07% 
Pashto 71 4.83% 
Pashto Northern 1 0.07% 
Pashton 5 0.34% 
Sgnaw 20 1.36% 
Somali 45 3.06% 
Spanish 74 5.03% 
Swahili 538 36.57% 
Tedim 1 0.07% 
Tigrinya 22 1.5% 
Zotung 10 0.68% 

TOTAL 960 100% 
 
Factor 3: Nature and Importance of DART Services to LEP Persons 
DART recognizes that thousands of people depend on its services each day for critical mobility 
needs, such as traveling to work, medical appointments, shopping for food, and getting to 
school.  
 
Public transportation has been considered the “to” in Welfare to Work, Access to Healthcare, 
and several other programs and/or services that often are utilized by low-income, minorities and 
LEP persons. Without access to public transportation many of these individuals would not be 
able to take advantage of other services that could potentially be life changing or life 
sustaining. Any denial, delay or reduction in access to DART services because of language-
related barriers is unacceptable to DART. 
 
 
 

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 36



Des Moines Area Regional Transit Authority  
2025 Title VI Program Update   
 

28 
 

Factor 4: Resources Available to DART and Overall Cost 
DART is committed to providing resources for language assistance. Today, DART mainly focuses 
its language assistance resources on providing important information in Spanish, and DART has 
leveraged technology and community partnerships to amplify its ability to provide useful 
information in many more languages used by the local population.  
 
The cost associated with these efforts fall within DART’s operating budget. Current costs are 
predominately a reflection of translation/interpretation services and marketing materials. DART’s 
budget for these services is set annually using a base level consistent with historical need, plus 
consideration of service planning, public outreach, or targeted marketing that might require 
additional language assistance resources.   

4.2  Implementation Plan 
 
Existing Language Assistance Programs and Services 
DART utilizes the following methods to assist customers and the general public with understanding 
and accessing its services in their native language: 
 
 General Language Assistance 

• DART website content can be translated into over 100 languages.  

• Access to real-time telephone translation services, 
providing DART with 240 language options to 
translate with customers. 

• Translation of DART documents is made available 
upon request. 

• Translation services available at all public meetings 
by request.  

• Meeting notices include explanation of procedures 
to request language translation. 

• Pocket guides printed in eight languages to provide 
guidance on how to ride DART, as well as a trip 
identification tool to help front-line DART staff assist 
LEP customers.  

• A pilot wayfinding sign program was launched at 30 
bus stops along a corridor with multiple human 
service agencies and shopping destinations with 
icons and maps that were designed to be 
accessible regardless of English language abilities.   

• DART’s Title VI and Language Assistance Plan are 
posted on the DART website. 

• Partnerships with local agencies who work 
specifically with LEP populations to assist with 
applying for reduced fare programs and other 
services, as well as “How-to-Ride” training.  

• Training of all staff on Title VI requirements and how to 
provide language assistance. 

English version of DART Pocket guide 

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 37



Des Moines Area Regional Transit Authority  
2025 Title VI Program Update   
 

29 
 

 Spanish Language Assistance 
• Vital documents such as the Title VI policy and complaint form and paratransit application 

form are available in Spanish.  

• On-board customer information bulletins (“hang tags”) are printed in English and Spanish. 

• On-board audio announcements regarding changes in service or public outreach 
opportunities are provided in Spanish. 

• DART’s automated telephone schedule information line includes a Spanish translation 
option. 

• Onboard passenger surveys are available in Spanish. 

• Many DART bus operators are bilingual, and Spanish language skills are targeted during 
bus operator recruitment. 

• Some staff in the Customer Experience department are bilingual (Spanish). 
  

   
Sample on-board bilingual signage 

 Other Safe Harbor Languages 
• All Vital documents are either fully translated into all Safe Harbor languages (identified in 

Section 4.1) or contain a translation availability statement 

• Vital forms available with complete, physical translations in all safe harbor languages 
include: Title VI Complaint Form, Paratransit Service Eligibility Form, and ADA Complaint 
Form 

• Vital forms with full translations in select Safe Harbor Languages and translation availability 
statements include: Title VI Notice, Bus Plus Policies, and Reduced Fare Eligibility and 
Application 

• Some versions of vital forms such as the Title VI Notice, Title VI Complaint Procedure and 
Reduced Fare Eligibility and Application have a full web page version that can be 
translated into more than 100 languages as a feature of DART’s website 

• Non-vital situational materials such as surveys, alerts, or on-board bus announcements may 
be considered for translation into additional safe-harbor languages on an as-needed 
basis, and will include translation availability statements whenever reasonably practicable 

Opportunities for Improvement 
DART’s intends to continue to evaluate and improve its language assistance programs and 
services in the following ways:  

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 38



Des Moines Area Regional Transit Authority  
2025 Title VI Program Update   
 

30 
 

• Translate additional key documents: Analyze the use of the DART website and inquiries at 
the customer service window to determine what information is important to our customers 
and should be proactively translated into Spanish and other prevalent languages. For 
example, while applications for reduced-fare programs are available in Spanish, 
additional information about the various fare categories could be proactively translated.  

• Improve how we coordinate with member governments to share best practices and 
leverage language assistance resources and outreach opportunities with LEP populations.   

• Continue to identify community-based organizations that work with underrepresented 
groups such as LEP, minority and low-income populations to amplify DART’s information 
sharing and provide “how-to-ride” training and other information to improve access to 
DART’s services. Also work with those groups to design inclusive public outreach and target 
hard-to-reach populations to ensure that more diverse voices are included in DART’s 
public participation processes.  

• Recognizing that the rate at which DART’s language interpretation services are utilized is 
relatively low, DART should consider how to improve how it advertises those services.  

 
Training Staff 
DART trains its staff on its role and responsibilities to provide meaningful access to services for LEP 
persons in the following ways: 

• Training is provided to all new hires on Title VI and language assistance policies for 
providing meaningful access to services for LEP persons. 

• DART staff re-trained annually on DART’s Title VI policy and how to access language 
assistance resources. 

• Front-line staff such as bus operators and customer service representatives receive 
additional specialized training in language assistance and how to handle a potential 
Title VI complaint. 

• DART Customer Service and partner human service agencies encourage the use of 
Pocket Guides and Travel Cards to assist customers with navigating the system and 
identifying their destination and language preferences so that front line staff can best 
assist them. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 39



Des Moines Area Regional Transit Authority  
2025 Title VI Program Update   
 

31 
 

Providing Notice to LEP Individuals 
USDOT LEP guidance states: “Once an agency has decided, based on the four factors, that it 
will provide language service, it is important that the recipient notify LEP persons of services 
available free of charge. Recipients should provide this notice in languages LEP persons can 
understand.” 
 
DART provides this notification through the following: 

• Translation or translation availability notice in Safe Harbor languages for vital documents 

• Issuing service-related notices in English and Spanish. 

• Meeting notices include instructions on how to request language assistance (with 
advance notice) written in both English and Spanish. 

• DART’s route system map includes a statement in Spanish about the availability of 
interpretation services and how to access them.  

• Providing information for how to request translation services as part of outreach and 
training that DART conducts with clients of various human service agencies. 

• Use of an automated telephone greeting in both Spanish and English, directing callers to 
select which language they prefer. 

• Public Participation and Language Assistance Plans are available on DART’s website.  

• Interior signage on all buses. 

• Tile VI notices displayed at DART Central Station. 

4.3  Monitoring and Updating the Language Assistance Plan 
 
This plan is designed to be flexible, and should be viewed as a framework rather than a recipe 
since communications and methods should always be tailored to the circumstances and needs 
of the intended recipient. As such, it is important to consider whether new documents and 
services need to be made accessible for LEP persons, and also to monitor changes in 
demographics and types of services.  Additionally, a tailored public participation plan, including 
language assistance activities, should be developed for major undertakings such as fare 
changes or service planning activities.  
 
On an ongoing basis, DART will examine and update its Language Assistance Plan in the 
following manner: 

• Work with partner human service agencies to collect feedback on the accessibility and 
usefulness of DART’s language assistance services.  

• Monitor feedback from Customer Service staff about the effectiveness and utilization of 
language assistance services.  

• Determine whether DART’s financial resources are sufficient to fund language assistance 
resources needed as part of annual budgeting activities. 

• On an annual basis, staff will review whether DART is complying with the goals and 
methods described in this Language Assistance Plan. 

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 40



Des Moines Area Regional Transit Authority  
2025 Title VI Program Update   
 

32 
 

5  Racial Breakdown of Non-Elected Committees 
The Transit Riders Advisory Committee (TRAC) of the Des Moines Area Regional Transit Authority 
(DART) in Des Moines, Iowa, was established in 2008 as a means for transit riders to advise DART 
staff and the DART Commission on services, initiatives, and related programs.    
 
The committee’s bylaws define the composition of the committee and the appointment process 
and were updated in 2022 to reflect changes to DART’s governance structure, and to ensure 
more diverse participation across DART’s customer base by selecting riders of various DART 
services, cultural backgrounds, ages and abilities.  
 
Composition 
TRAC shall be composed of eleven (11) members. These 11 members will include five (5) riders 
representing DART’s fixed route (Express Routes and Local Routes, with at least 1 rider for Express 
and 1 rider for Local), three (3) riders representing DART’s mobility services (Paratransit, On Call, 
and DART On Demand) and at-large membership to include three (3) members representing 
key constituencies such as refugees, seniors 65+, students, low-income individuals or millennials. 
 
All 11 members must reflect a broad representation of people from different geographic 
locations of DART’s service area and not any particular advocacy group. Membership shall 
reflect a broad array of age, gender, race, culture and disabilities to best reflect the concerns of 
riders. DART employees, family members and elected officials are not eligible for membership on 
TRAC. 

Table C:  
 

Racial Breakdown of Non-Elected Committees 
 

Body Total 
White Alone 
(Not Hisp. or 

Latino) 

Hispanic 
or Latino 

African 
American 

Asian 
American 

Native 
American 

Multi-
racial 

Un- 
specified 

Polk County 
Population  
(Number)  

505,255 373,889 53,557 39,915 15,220 2,021 14,147 
 

N/A 
 

Polk County 
Population  
(Percentage)  

100% 74.0% 10.6% 7.9% 5.2% 0.4% 2.8% N/A 

Active Membership 
as of January 2025 
Transit Rider 
Advisory Committee  
(Number)  

11 7 1 1 0 0 1 1 

Active Membership 
as of January 2025 
Transit Rider 
Advisory Committee 
(Percentage) 

100% 64% 9% 9% 0% 0% 9% 9% 

 

 

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 41



Des Moines Area Regional Transit Authority  
2025 Title VI Program Update   
 

33 
 

Recruitment Process for Members 
The day-to-day operation of the committee is handled by a “TRAC Liaison” who is designated 
by the Chief Executive Officer. When there are openings on the committee, the TRAC Liaison 
works with the Marketing and Communications Department to solicit applications from the riding 
population. The approach is to reach as many transit riders as possible in their environment, as 
well as through other means. Approaches to get higher rates of participation from minority 
groups include the following:  

• Emails to partner agencies that serve minority populations  

• Emails to subscription lists of fixed-route riders  

• Audio ads on buses  

• Website and social media posts 

• Posters displayed at Dart Central Station 

• Applications handed out at public reception desk 

• Information postcards handed out at in person events 

• In app notification to riders using the MyDART mobile app 

6  Efforts to Ensure Subrecipient Compliance with Title 
VI 
DART’s only sub-recipient is the City of Des Moines as it relates to the FTA funded Center Street 
Park & Ride facility (sub-grantee). The parking facility opened in spring 1999 and is operated and 
maintained by the city. DART provides a shuttle service from the parking facility to downtown 
Des Moines, and the city pays for the bus service with the parking revenues. 
 
DART regularly reviews the City of Des Moines’ Title VI plan for compliance with FTA requirements, 
and requests documentation of all Title VI investigations, complaints or lawsuits filed with the sub-
recipient since the last submission.  
 
The City of Des Moines Title VI plan was last updated in September 2024 and was and found to 
be meet FTA requirements. There have been no transportation related Title VI complaints, 
investigations, or lawsuits against the City of Des Moines over the past three years. 

7 Title VI Program-Specific Requirements for Transit 
Providers 

The following items respond to the specific information requirements described in Circular 
4702.1B of October 1, 2012, for the Title VI programs of FTA transit funding recipients serving areas 
of 200,000 or more residents. 

7.1  Requirements to Set Service Standards and Service Policies 
DART’s Service Standards and Performance Monitoring Policies can be found in Appendix B. 

 

 

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 42



Des Moines Area Regional Transit Authority  
2025 Title VI Program Update   
 

34 
 

7.2  Collection of Demographic Data 
Demographic and Service Profile Maps and Charts 
DART has prepared demographic and service profile maps and charts using the most recently 
available Census and American Community Survey data.  

• A base map showing the current system network along with major attractors and 
generators within the service area, and recent and planned transit facility updates.  

• A demographic map showing Census block analysis of minority populations throughout 
the DART service area. Areas on this map that are shaded are the Census blocks where 
the minority population percentage is at or above the average for DART’s service area.  

• A demographic map showing Census block analysis of low-income populations relative 
to DART’s service area. Areas on this map that are shaded are the Census blocks where 
the low-income population percentage is at or above average for DART’s service area. 
 

DART System Network Map 

 

 

 

 

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 43



Des Moines Area Regional Transit Authority  
2025 Title VI Program Update   
 

35 
 

Demographic and service Profile Maps 
 

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 44



Des Moines Area Regional Transit Authority  
2025 Title VI Program Update   
 

36 
 

7.3  Results of Program Monitoring and Reports 
The FTA requires transit providers that operate 50 or more fixed route vehicles in peak service 
and are located in urbanized areas (UZA) of 200,000 or more people to monitor their service 
standards and policies. Service standards and policies provide the framework for monitoring 
performance and comparing performance in minority communities to performance in non-
minority communities for the purposes of assessing whether services are being provided 
equitably.  

In general, DART’s hub and spoke network provides the most coverage and frequency in the 
central area of the region, which is also generally the portion of DART’s service area with the 
highest concentrations of minority populations. In order to compare the performance of minority 
routes relative to non-minority routes, DART has categorized all routes as a minority route if the 
minority population living within a half mile of the route is five (5) percentage points higher than 
the system average, and low-income if the low-income population living within a half mile of the 
route was five (5) percentage points higher than the system average. 

    Minority Routes:  Non-Minority Routes: 

Core Local:   Route 1   Route 7 

   Route 3   Route 16 

   Route 4   Route 52 

   Route 6     

   Route 14 

   Route 15 

   Route 17 

   Route 60       

Support Local:  Route 5 

   Route 8 

   Route 10 

   Route 11 

   Route 50       

Shuttle:   Route 13   Route 74 

   LINK    Route 72  

   Route 2  

Express:  Route 96   Route 92 

       Route 93 

       Route 94 

       Route 95 

       Route 98 

       Route 99   

 

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 45



Des Moines Area Regional Transit Authority  
2025 Title VI Program Update   
 

37 
 

For reference, DART’s service standards are summarized in Table D below, and explained in 
more detail in Appendix B. 
 
Table D. DART Service Standards 

 
Monitoring of Service Standards 
DART analyzed the performance of each category of route (minority or non-minority) for the 
data available in the reporting period, June 1st, 2022, through December 31st, 2024, against the 
service standards and policies required for the Title VI program, as follows: 
 

• Standards 
o Vehicle Load  
o Vehicle Headway 
o On-Time Performance 
o Service Accessibility (Stop Spacing) 

• Policies 
o Vehicle Assignment 
o Distribution of Transit Amenities 

Reports on Effectiveness of Standards 
This analysis shows that DART routes in minority communities perform similarly to routes in non-
minority communities. This is primarily due to land use, density and the hub and spoke model of 
DART’s fixed route network. Where routes do not meet DART’s performance standards, efforts 
are already underway to consider remedial action.  

Vehicle Load Monitoring 

Maximum vehicle loads throughout trips were compared for minority and non-minority routes. 
Target capacity for each route classification is shown as a percentage in the service quality 
standards. To illustrate capacity targets, Table E below shows common bus sizes with typical 
seating capacities. Maximum passenger loads (in number of persons) corresponding to the load 

 Efficiency & 
Effectiveness Standards Service Quality Standards 

Service 
Type 

Passengers 
Per Hour 

Cost Per 
Customer 

Passenger 
Load 

Vehicle 
Assignment Headways Stop 

Spacing 
On-Time 

Performance 

Percent 
Trips 

Completed 

Average 
Fleet 
Age 

Core 
Local 20 $6.00 125% 

40’ (60’ or 
35’ where 

appropriate)  

15 - 30 
min 0.25 

85% 98% 7.5 years 

Support 
Local 15 $10.00 125% 

40’ (60’ or 
35’ where 

appropriate) 

30 - 60 
min 0.25 

Express 15 $15.00 100% 
40’ (60’ or 
35’ where 

appropriate) 

20 - 30 
min 

Only as 
needed 

Shuttle 5 $25.00 125% 

Vehicle 
smaller than 
30’ medium 

duty bus 

Varies 
based on 
demand 

0.25 

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 46



Des Moines Area Regional Transit Authority  
2025 Title VI Program Update   
 

38 
 

targets in the service standards are also shown. For more information on how vehicles are 
assigned to route classes, see the ‘Vehicle Assignment’ section.  

Table E. Typical seating capacities and load target capacities of common DART bus sizes  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The number of passengers on the bus at any given time is estimated using Automated Passenger 
Counter (APC) technology. APC data was analyzed by trip for the time period to determine the 
max load that all trips experienced.  Table F shows a count of trips over and within capacity 
target for minority and non-minority by route class. 99.93% of all trips operate within target 
capacity. To further analyze the very few trips that go over capacity, Figure 1 shows the rate of 
these occurrences (number divided by the total trips offered) by type of day and time of day for 
minority and non-minority. Overcapacity events occur at a slightly higher overall rate for minority 
than non-minority routes, particularly on Saturday at AM Peak and PM peak times and Sunday 
all day.  

Table F. Count of trips within and over capacity target for minority and non-minority 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Vehicle 
Class 

(Length) 

Seating 
Capacity 
(Persons) 

100% 
Passenger 

Load 
(Persons) 

125% 
Passenger 

Load 
(Persons) 

40’ 40 40 50 

35’ 35 35 44 

30’ 25 25 32 

29’ 23 23 29 

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 47



Des Moines Area Regional Transit Authority  
2025 Title VI Program Update   
 

39 
 

Figure 1. Rate of trips over capacity by day type and time of day for minority and non-minority 

   
Vehicle Headway Monitoring 

This metric evaluates the resource allocation for DART fixed route service and shows it is 
comparable between minority and non-minority routes. Table G shows lines operating, frequent 
lines, beginning and end times of service, average headway during each unique time period, 
and span. Overall, minority service comes slightly more often and operates slightly longer. Figure 
2 compares average headway across routes by day type and time period for minority and non-
minority (shorter column is more frequent service). Minority service consistently comes a little bit 
sooner aside from weekday and Saturday evenings and early AM on Saturday.  

Table G. Operating and frequent lines, average headways, service start/end times and span by 
route day type for minority and non-minority routes 

 
Figure 2. Average headway by day type and time period for minority and non-minority 

 
 

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 48



Des Moines Area Regional Transit Authority  
2025 Title VI Program Update   
 

40 
 

Another way to monitor headway performance is to compare average published headways to 
target headways in the service standard. Figure 3 shows average headways by day type 
compared to the target headway with a difference (in minutes) for minority and non-minority. 
This analysis shows core local Saturday and Sunday service and weekday express service are 
below target headways but are relatively equal between minority and non-minority routes. It 
could be appropriate to consider defining separate weekend headway targets in the service 
standards in the future.  

Table H. Average headways vs target headways for minority and non-minority 

 
On-Time Performance Monitoring 

On-time performance on average for all services in the period, shown in Figure 3, is below 
DART’s 85% target and is almost the same for minority and non-minority routes. Figure 4 shows 
the same data by time of day and reveals the midday and PM peak are especially poor 
performing times. Figure 5 shows a progression of on-time performance through the period, 
which reveals a trend that on time performance worsened significantly between March 2023 
and September 2024 and has started to recover since. For the most recent full quarter of data, 
shown in Figure 5, there are only three minority and two non-minority routes operating to the on-
time service standard (routes below 85% marked in red). The period of poor performance could 
be due to a combination of factors such as federal infrastructure programs increasing city 
construction efforts and increased traffic as more people return to work in person in a post-
COVID world. Improving on-time performance has been a significant point of effort for DART in 
2024 for both the planning and operational sides of the organization. Multiple recent service 
changes have incorporated route realignments, schedule changes or run time adjustments in 
attempt to improve on-time performance. In operations, additional initiatives have been 
implemented to look at operator supervision strategies, remediation strategies and monitoring 
operator behaviors as they relate especially to on-time performance.  

Figure 3. Average on-time performance (in percent on-time) for minority and non-minority 
routes 

 

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 49



Des Moines Area Regional Transit Authority  
2025 Title VI Program Update   
 

41 
 

Figure 4. Average on-time performance (in percent on-time) by time of day for minority and 
non-minority routes 

 
Figure 5. Chart of on-time performance (%) by month and table of on-time performance (%) for 
Q2 FY25 for minority and non-minority routes 

 
Service Availability 

DART uses bus stop spacing to measure service availability. DART’s stop spacing target is 0.25 
miles for the entire system. Bus stop spacing for each route or corridor depends on a number of 
factors, such as distance between controlled intersections and key destinations. Therefore, bus 
stops may be located more or less than the target distance. Table I shows current stop spacing 
for the entire system is 0.20 miles. Spacing is comparable between minority and non-minority for 
Core route types. For express and shuttle routes, minority routes tend to have more bus stops per 
mile, which is further out of compliance with our spacing targets. Efforts have been underway to 
consolidate stops where appropriate to bring total system stop spacing closer to our target.  

 

 

 

 

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 50



Des Moines Area Regional Transit Authority  
2025 Title VI Program Update   
 

42 
 

Table I. Stop spacing by route class in miles per stop and stops per mile for minority and non-
minority 

 

Reports on Effectiveness of Policies 
Vehicle Assignment  

A vehicle assignment standard provides guidance for matching the appropriate vehicle type to 
each service type. The primary consideration for vehicle assignment is the number of people on 
the vehicle at any one time (load). Most fixed-route services require a standard 40-foot bus; 
however, load variation may call for a different vehicle with more or less capacity. This standard 
is required of all fixed-route operators to ensure bus capacity is distributed in accordance with 
load or another objective measure.  

Average Fleet Age. DART’s policy is to rotate buses of appropriate size throughout the system, 
this results in a relatively proportional distribution of vehicle age across service classes and 
minority designation. The average fleet age as of December 31st, 2024, is 9 years. The average 
fleet age by route class for minority and non-minority is shown below in Figure 6. The random 
assignment policy is effective at ensuring the ages of buses serving minority and non-minority 
populations are comparable. The total average vehicle age by minority and non-minority for all 
DART fixed route services is shown below in Figure 7, they are both 8.9 years.  

Figure 6. Average fleet age by route class for minority and non-minority 

 
 

 

 

 

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 51



Des Moines Area Regional Transit Authority  
2025 Title VI Program Update   
 

43 
 

Figure 7. Average fleet age for minority and non-minority, whole system 

 
Transit Amenities 

The following maps show the current shelter locations relative to above-average minority and 
low-income census tracts within the DART service area.  Of the 56 shelters in the service area 
owned and maintained by DART, 31 are located within or adjacent to minority census tracts 
and 31 are located within or adjacent to low-income census tracts. The analysis confirms a 
balanced distribution of transit amenities through the service area.  

 
 
 
 

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 52



Des Moines Area Regional Transit Authority  
2025 Title VI Program Update   
 

44 
 

 
 

7.4  Public Engagement Process for Setting Major Service Change 
Policy, Disparate Impact Policy, and Disproportionate Burden Policy 
In early 2019, DART updated its Service and Fare Equity Policies.  

DART hosted two public meetings on February 18 and 19, 2019 to gather public input on the 
proposed policy updates, as well as discuss how DART could best provide information and 
receive public input on transportation issues from low income, minority and LEP populations. 
Information was also shared about other elements of this Title VI Program update.  

DART notified the public about the meetings and provided opportunities for electronic review 
and commenting using the following methods:  

• Audio and text announcements in both English and Spanish on board all buses 

• Notices on DART’s website, www.ridedart.com   

• Email distribution lists 

• Requested that partner human service providers help us advertise the public meetings 
and website, or provide feedback directly  

• Notices at DART Central Station  

• Social media including Facebook and Twitter  

Translation services were made available upon request. 

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 53

http://www.ridedart.com/


Des Moines Area Regional Transit Authority  
2025 Title VI Program Update   
 

45 
 

 

       
       Bilingual public meeting announcements 

At the DART Commission meeting on March 5, 2019, the policy was reviewed and adopted. 

 

7.5  Major Service Change, Disparate Impact Policy, & 
Disproportionate Burden Policy 
On March 5, 2019, the DART Commission adopted an updated version of DART’s Service and 
Fare Equity Policy. The full policy document can be found in Appendix C, and the individual 
policies are listed below: 
 
   Major Service Change  

A major service change is defined as when 25 percent or more of a route’s revenue hours or 
revenue miles is added or reduced, or when the total revenue hours for the system are 
expanded or reduced by 10 percent or more.  
 

  Disparate Impacts 
DART will consider a proposed major service change to have a disparate impact if the affected 
route’s minority population is more than 5 percentage points greater than the system average. 
 
DART will consider a proposed fare rate or media change to have a disparate impact if the 
proportion of minority customers likely to be negatively affected is more than 5 percentage 
points greater than the overall proportion of DART customers likely to be affected.   
 

 Disproportionate Burden   
DART will consider a proposed major service change to have a disproportionate burden if the 
affected route’s low-income population is more than 5 percentage points greater than the 
system average. 
 
DART will consider a proposed fare rate or media change to have a disproportionate burden if 
the proportion of low-income customers likely to be negatively affected is more than 5 
percentage points greater than the overall proportion of DART customers likely to be affected.  

 
 

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 54



Des Moines Area Regional Transit Authority  
2025 Title VI Program Update   
 

46 
 

7.6  Results of Service Analysis and/or Fare Equity Analysis since Last 
Submission 
Since the last Title VI Program Update, there were 11 service changes. Four service changes, 
listed below, met the threshold of a defined “major service change”. A Service Equity Analysis 
was performed for each of the major service changes and is included as Appendices D, F, H 
and I.  

Two fare equity analyses were also conducted. The first was to determine the impact of setting a 
fare for DART’s microtransit service zone called DART On Demand. In November 2021, DART On 
Demand replaced the On-Call ‘day-ahead booking’ service model in the member city of 
Ankeny with a more flexible demand response service. The goals of DART on Demand are to 
respond to an increase in public feedback indicating a greater transit need in the community, 
to complement and enhance existing fixed-route express services to Ankeny, and to pilot an 
innovative service model to potentially consider how to apply it in other parts of the region. The 
new microtransit service was launched with a temporary discount rate of $1. The fare equity 
analysis in July 2022 was to evaluate the impact of establishing a permanent rate at $1.75, half 
the cost of previous On-Call services and the same as fixed-route fares. The proposal was found 
not to have a disproportionate negative impact on minority or low-income riders and was 
approved by commission action in August 2022.  

The other fare equity analysis was conducted in September 2023 to evaluate the impact of a 
proposed change to the DART paratransit (or ‘Bus Plus’) fare policy. Bus Plus is DART Paratransit’s 
ADA door-to-door supportive service for riders with a disability. Policy changes were proposed to 
help control the costs and high demand of the service while still meeting customer needs. The 
policy proposed requiring customers to obtain a signed medical statement from a licensed 
medical professional to prove they meet the qualifications to receive service under the 
program. It would also make fixed-route fares free for anyone who qualifies for the Bus Plus 
program (49% of those surveyed indicated they would utilize DART fixed route service for some of 
their trips if the service was free to use). Finally, it would introduce a new ‘Bus Plus Premium Zone’ 
expanding service for a market-rate fee of $30 to areas outside of the required paratransit 
service area. Upon evaluation, the proposed changes were not found to constitute a 
disproportionate burden on low-income individuals or a disparate impact on minority individuals 
and were approved by commission action in September 2023.  

 

Major Service Changes 
• June 2022 
• June 2023 
• February 2024 
• November 2024 

Minor Service Changes 
• August 2022 
• November 2022 
• February 2023 
• August 2023 
• November 2023 
• June 2024 
• February 2025 

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 55



Des Moines Area Regional Transit Authority  
2025 Title VI Program Update   
 

47 
 

8  DART Commission Approval of Title VI Program 
 
On April 1, 2025, at their regularly scheduled meeting, the DART Commission approved the 2025 
Title VI Program. The agenda and minutes for the meeting are included in Appendix J.  

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 56



Des Moines Area Regional Transit Authority  
2025 Title VI Program Update   
 

48 
 

Appendices 
 

A. List of DART Community Partners 

B. Service Standards and Performance Monitoring Guidelines  

C. Service and Fare Equity Policy 

D. June 2022 Service Equity Analysis 

E. July 2022 DART on Demand Fare Policy Equity Analysis 

F. June 2023 Service Equity Analysis 

G. September 2023 Free Paratransit Fare Equity Analysis 

H. February 2024 Service Equity Analysis 

I. November 2024 Service Equity Analysis 

J. Commission agenda, minutes of approval of 2025 Title VI Program Update 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 57



Des Moines Area Regional Transit Authority  
2025 Title VI Program Update   
 

Appendix 
49 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX A 
 

List of DART Community Partners 
 

Click here for link to document                                                                                                                   
(opens in web browser) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 58

https://www.ridedart.com/sites/default/files/about-dart/about-dart/Title%20VI/Appendix%20A%20-%20List%20of%20Community%20Partners.pdf


Des Moines Area Regional Transit Authority  
2025 Title VI Program Update   
 

Appendix 
50 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX B 
 

Service Standards and 
Performance Monitoring 

Guidelines 
 

Click here for link to document                                                                                                                   
(opens in web browser) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 59

https://www.ridedart.com/sites/default/files/about-dart/about-dart/Title%20VI/Appendix%20B%20-%20Service%20Standards%20and%20Performance%20Monitoring%20Guidelines.pdf


Des Moines Area Regional Transit Authority  
2025 Title VI Program Update   
 

Appendix 
51 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX C 
 

Service and Fare Equity Policy 
 

Click here for link to document                                                                                                                   
(opens in web browser) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 60

https://www.ridedart.com/sites/default/files/about-dart/about-dart/Title%20VI/Appendix%20C%20-%20Service%20and%20Fare%20Equity%20Policies.pdf


Des Moines Area Regional Transit Authority  
2025 Title VI Program Update   
 

Appendix 
52 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX D 
 

June 2022 Service Equity Analysis 
 

Click here for link to document                                                                                                                   
(opens in web browser) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 61

https://www.ridedart.com/sites/default/files/about-dart/about-dart/Title%20VI/Appendix%20D%20-%20Title%20VI%20Analysis_June%202022.pdf


Des Moines Area Regional Transit Authority  
2025 Title VI Program Update   
 

Appendix 
53 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX E 
 

July 2022 DART on Demand Fare 
Policy Equity Analysis 

 
Click here for link to document                                                                                                                   

(opens in web browser) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 62

https://www.ridedart.com/sites/default/files/about-dart/about-dart/Title%20VI/Appendix%20E%20-%20July%202022%20DART%20On%20Demand%20Fare%20Policy%20Title%20VI%20Analysis.pdf


Des Moines Area Regional Transit Authority  
2025 Title VI Program Update   
 

Appendix 
54 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX F 
 

June 2023 Service Equity Analysis 
 

Click here for link to document                                                                                                                   
(opens in web browser) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 63

https://www.ridedart.com/sites/default/files/about-dart/about-dart/Title%20VI/Appendix%20F%20-%20Title%20VI%20Analysis_June%202023.pdf


Des Moines Area Regional Transit Authority  
2025 Title VI Program Update   
 

Appendix 
55 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX G 
 

September 2023 Free Paratransit 
Fare Equity Analysis 

 
Click here for link to document                                                                                                                   

(opens in web browser) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 64

https://www.ridedart.com/sites/default/files/about-dart/about-dart/Title%20VI/Appendix%20G%20-%20September%202023%20Free%20PT%20Fare%20Title%20VI%20Analysis.pdf


Des Moines Area Regional Transit Authority  
2025 Title VI Program Update   
 

Appendix 
56 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX H 
 

February 2024 Service Equity 
Analysis 

 
Click here for link to document                                                                                                                   

(opens in web browser) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 65

https://www.ridedart.com/sites/default/files/about-dart/about-dart/Title%20VI/Appendix%20H%20-%20February%202024%20Service%20Change%20Title%20VI.pdf


Des Moines Area Regional Transit Authority  
2025 Title VI Program Update   
 

Appendix 
57 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX I 
 

November 2024  Service Equity 
Analysis 

 
Click here for link to document                                                                                                                   

(opens in web browser) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 66

https://www.ridedart.com/sites/default/files/about-dart/about-dart/Title%20VI/Appendix%20I%20-%20Title%20VI%20Analysis_November%202024.pdf


Des Moines Area Regional Transit Authority  
2025 Title VI Program Update   
 

Appendix 
58 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX J 
 

Commission Agenda and Minutes 
of Approval of 2025 Title VI 

Program Update 
 

This document will be added when it is available after the May 2025 DART Commission Meeting 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 67



CONSENT ITEM 
 

6F: Computerized Wheel Alignment System with 35,000-pound capacity  

Action: Approve the Computerized Wheel Alignment System purchase up to 
$160,000 

Staff Resource: Mike Gulick, Interim Finance Lead/Senior Manager, Procurement and 
Compliance   

 
Background: 

• DART can no longer perform wheel alignments on its buses as the local provider no longer 
provides this service, and DART has not been able to find another provider. 
 

• DART seeks to acquire a computerized wheel alignment machine to improve fleet 
maintenance of our buses, ensuring proper vehicle alignment for safety and efficiency. 

 
• By improving alignment accuracy, this system will help extend tire life and reduce steering-

related maintenance costs, resulting in operational savings. 
 

Procurement: 
• The competitive solicitation for the Computerized Wheel Alignment System was publicly 

opened on January 16, 2025, and two bids were received. 
 

o D & E Equipment Company bid $155,127.63 
o Mohawk Lift bid $167,518.42  

 
• After reviewing responsiveness and responsibility, DART is recommending awarding the bid to 

D & E Equipment Company. 
 
• D & E Equipment Company is a registered entity with the federal System for Award 

Management (SAM), showing no restrictions and are eligible to receive federal funded 
awards.  

 
Funding: 

• There is funding available in the capital budget for this item, with 80% federal Grant and 20% 
local match. 
 

Recommendation: 

• Approve the purchase of the Computerized Wheel Alignment System with 35,000-pound 
capacity for the Maintenance Department for up to $160,000 with contingency. 

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 68



CONSENT ITEM 
 

6G: Adsposure Contract Approval 

Action: Approve a 1-year Extension of Advertising Vehicles, Inc. 
Contract for Transit Advertising Sales 

Staff Resource: Michael Gulick, Interim Finance Lead / Senior Procurement 
and Compliance Manager 

 
Background: 

• In FY2016, DART publicly solicited proposals for transit advertising sales services and awarded 
a contract to Advertising Vehicles, Inc (doing business as Adsposure).  

• The contract’s initial five-year term and three optional renewals were exhausted in 2024, at 
which time DART executed an extension to the contract for an additional year (7/1/2024 
through 6/30/2025). 

• This extension was justified using a Sole Source form, which cited duplicative cost, 
unacceptable delay, resource shortages, and adequate compensation. 

Procurement: 

• DART’s revenue contract extension with Advertising Vehicles, Inc. that was executed last 
year expires on June 30, 2025.  

• The significant changes DART will be making to its bus network through Reimagine DART will 
impact the terms of a future advertising agreement. As a result, DART staff believe it is in the 
organization’s best interest to extend the contract for one additional year (7/1/2025 through 
6/30/2026). 
 

• Staff negotiated a $35,000 increase in the guaranteed minimum with the vendor for the 
additional year. Advertising Vehicles will pay DART $350,000 or 57% of all advertising revenue 
generated, whichever is greater.  

 
Funding: 

• N/A – This is a revenue contract. 
 

Recommendation: 

• Approve the extension of the Advertising Vehicles, Inc. contract for one additional year. 

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 69



CONSENT ITEM 
 

6H: February FY 2025 Consolidated Financial Report 

Action: Approve the February FY 2025 Consolidated Financial Report 

Staff Resource: Kayley Alexander, Accounting Manager 

 
Year-to-Date Budget Highlights: 

Revenue: 
• Fixed Route operating revenue exceeds the budget by 13.2% through the first eight months of 

the fiscal year. Other contracted services, Unlimited Access program, mobile ticketing passes, 
school funding, and cash fares are all trending significantly ahead of budget. 

• Fixed Route non-operating revenue is trending ahead of budget by 3.9%. Interest income is still 
the main driver of this revenue, along with grant revenues. 

• Mobility Services operating revenue exceeds budget by 7.4% year-to-date. Polk County funding 
for contracted trips, mobile ticketing passes, and cash fares are all exceeding budget 
projections. 

• Mobility Services non-operating revenue is exceeding budget by 2.0% year-to-date due to an 
increased allocation of our 5310 elderly/disabled grant funds to reimburse expenses from our 
overflow TNC and taxi services. 

• Caravan revenues are under budget by 38.7% due to fewer vanpools in operation than 
anticipated. We budgeted for an average of around 37 vanpools, and we currently have 24. 

Operating Expense: 
• Fixed Route operating expenses are under budget by 4.3% so far in FY25. Insurance and 

Services are the two categories seeing the most budget savings year-to-date. Our operators 
have been doing an excellent job of safe driving to limit accidents, falls, and other incidents 
and keep our insurance claims to a minimum. 

• Mobility Services operating expenses are under budget by 5.2% year-to-date. There are budget 
savings in quite a few areas, of which Salaries, Wages & Fringes and Equipment Repairs are the 
two largest. 

• Caravan has budget savings of 36.5% so far in FY25. Fuel and Lubricants along with Equipment 
Repairs are seeing the most savings to date, due to fewer vanpools in operation than 
projected. We are anticipating even more savings in equipment repairs as we work to bring the 
majority of those in-house in the coming months. 

Recommendation: 
• Approve the February FY2025 Consolidated Financial Report. 

  

** TOTAL Un-Audited Performance of February FY2025 Year-to-Date as Compared to Budget:    
  

Fixed Route  $   2,295,742            Reserve for Accidents (See Balance Sheet): 
      Mobility Services $      282,896                                                        $219,905       
 Caravan  $        (9,553)   
           Total   $   2,569,085    

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 70



FY2025 Financials:

FIXED ROUTE

Actual Budgeted Variance Actual Budgeted Variance

Operating Revenue 322,523        375,766          (53,243)         3,401,859              3,006,130           395,729        
Non-Operating Revenue 2,523,024     2,661,639       (138,615)       22,120,022            21,293,113         826,909        
      Subtotal 2,845,547     3,037,405       (191,858)       25,521,881            24,299,243         1,222,638     
Operating Expenses 2,813,099     3,109,311       296,212        23,801,382            24,874,487         1,073,105     
       Gain/(Loss) 32,448          (71,905)           104,353        1,720,499              (575,243)             2,295,742     

MOBILITY SERVICES
Actual Budgeted Variance Actual Budgeted Variance

Operating Revenue 55,564          55,583            (19)                477,488                 444,667              32,821          
Non-Operating Revenue 396,517        397,767          (1,250)           3,244,166              3,182,133           62,033          
      Subtotal 452,081        453,350          (1,269)           3,721,654              3,626,800           94,854          
Operating Expenses 403,074        453,350          50,276          3,438,758              3,626,800           188,042        
       Gain/(Loss) 49,007          -                  49,007          282,896                 -                      282,896        

CARAVAN
Actual Budgeted Variance Actual Budgeted Variance

Operating Revenue 13,331          39,939            (26,608)         160,120                 319,513              (159,393)       
Non-Operating Revenue 8,658            14,992            (6,334)           109,267                 119,933              (10,666)         
      Subtotal 21,989          54,931            (32,942)         269,387                 439,447              (170,060)       
Operating Expenses 45,589          54,931            9,342            278,940                 439,447              160,507        
       Gain/(Loss) (23,600)         -                  (23,600)         (9,553)                   -                      (9,553)           

SUMMARY
Actual Budgeted Variance Actual Budgeted Variance

Operating Revenue 391,418        471,289          (79,871)         4,039,467              3,770,310           269,157        
Non-Operating Revenue 2,928,199     3,074,398       (146,199)       25,473,455            24,595,180         878,275        
      Subtotal 3,319,617     3,545,686       (226,069)       29,512,922            28,365,490         1,147,432     
Operating Expenses 3,261,762     3,617,592       355,830        27,519,080            28,940,733         1,421,653     
       Gain/(Loss) 57,855          (71,905)           129,760        1,993,842              (575,243)             2,569,085     

February 2025

February 2025 Year-To-Date-(8) Months Ending 2/28/2025

February 2025 Year-To-Date-(8) Months Ending 2/28/2025

February 2025 Year-To-Date-(8) Months Ending 2/28/2025

February 2025 Year-To-Date-(8) Months Ending 2/28/2025

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 71



PUBLIC HEARING 
 

7: Public Hearing on Proposed FY2026 DART Budget and Tax Levy Rates 

Staff Resource: Amber Dakan, Finance Director 

Background: 
 

• Per the 28M Agreement and Section 28M.4 of the Iowa Code, the Regional Transit Authority 
must hold a public hearing on the proposed budget and allow any member community or 
the public to provide information to the Commission prior to its adoption of the budget. 

• Any written correspondence received prior to the meeting will be available for review. 

 

Public Hearing Procedures: 

• Any participants wishing to speak on the proposed subject should sign up in advance on the 
appropriate speakers list. 

• If necessary, DART staff will make a brief presentation regarding the subject of the hearing prior 
to receiving comment. 

• Speakers will be asked to state their: 

o Name 

o Address 

o Affiliation (if any) 

• Speakers will be asked to limit their remarks to 3 minutes. 

• Written comments/emails received to date will be made available to anyone wishing to 
review them.   

 

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 72



ACTION ITEM 
 

7A: FY2026 DART Budget and Tax Levy Rates 

Action: Certify the Proposed FY2026 DART Budget and the FY2026 Regional 
Transit Authority Tax Levy Rates as presented 

Staff Resource: Amber Dakan, Finance Director 

 

Background: 

• The DART Commission approved a Two-Year Stability Plan during FY2025 Budget approval in 
the Spring of 2024. This plan encompasses the FY2025-FY2026 budgets and laid out multiple 
components in order to provide stability in advance of the DART Reimagine system redesign. 

• The Two-Year Plan included the use of reserve funds, increasing the conversion of capital 
funds into operating funds, as well as expense reductions totaling more than $500,000 
annually.  

• The FY2026 Budget falls within the Two-Year Stability Plan, which called for at maximum of 5% 
growth in expenses over the prior year.  

• A workshop was held with Commission members on February 20 where staff outlined the 
proposed FY2026 Budget in detail. 

• Per the 28M Agreement, the Regional Transit Authority must hold a public hearing on the 
proposed budget and allow any member community or the public to provide information to 
the Commission prior to its adoption of the budget. A public hearing on the proposed 
budget is scheduled for: 

Tuesday, April 1, 2025 
12:00 P.M. 

DART Offices – 620 Cherry Street 
Des Moines, Iowa 50309 

• The public hearing will be held on April 1 and upon closing will transition to the regularly 
scheduled DART Commission meeting where the Commission will consider adopting the FY 
2026 budget in advance of the 28M Agreement’s deadline of April 30, 2025.   

FY2026 Budget: 

o The FY 2026 budget is focused on providing stability for DART riders, staff, and member 
communities while the agency undergoes a major system redesign known as Reimagine 
DART.  

o FY 2026 maintains existing service without any increase in total property tax contributions 
beyond what has already been planned. 

o Expense growth is 3.66% over the prior year, falling below the planned limit of 5% within 
the Two-Year Stability Plan. 

o Separately from the FY 2026 operating budget, staff are proposing the use of up to 
$950,000 in reserve funding collected through higher-than-normal interest rates to 
successfully implement Reimagine DART outcomes and undertake one-time activities 
aimed at process and efficiency improvements.  

 

 
DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 73



ACTION ITEM 
7A: Certify the Proposed FY2026 DART Budget and the FY2026 Regional Transit 

Authority Tax Levy Rates 

• FY 2026 revenue assumptions include:

o Residential rollback at 47.4316%, Commercial rollback at 90% for value exceeding
$150,000

o Multi-Residential rollback now matches Residential rollback
o FY26 is the second year of the Two-Year Stability Plan adopted by Commission
o Grant funding of $2.6 million awarded by the MPO is being utilized in FY26 to lower

property tax revenue needs
o Property tax revenue growth is 3.97% resulting from MPO grant funding spread over FY25-

FY26 allowing for less tax revenue needs
o Year five of the new property tax formula used to calculate DART levy rates. Rates are

based 50% on old formula and 50% on new formula.
o Loss of $100,000 in property tax backfill due to new legislation (7-year phase out)
o $513,060 in one-time funds will be used to reduce property tax requirements ($365,000 in

capital dollars converted to operating funds and $148,060 from cash reserves)
• FY2026 expenditure assumptions include:

o Service levels are sustained at FY25 levels
o 20% premium increase in health insurance expenses
o 10% premium increase in property & casualty insurance
o IPERS rates steady at FY2025 levels
o Mobility Services/Paratransit will continue to see expense growth reflective of increasing

Bus Plus demand.
o A new contract for ATU transit employees (Bus Operators, Maintenance, Service, Building

& Grounds) goes into effect in FY26.
o Local match budgeted to meet needs for FY 2026 FTA formula funding

Proposed Tax Levies: 

• The proposed tax rates listed are calculated based on the FY2026 property tax formula.

Jurisdiction FY2026 
DART Levy 

FY 2026 
Annual Cost 

for $200K 
Home 

Jurisdiction FY2026 
DART Levy 

FY 2026 
Annual Cost 

for $200K 
Home 

Altoona $.803 $76.19 Johnston $.650 $61.67 
Ankeny $.630 $59.73 Pleasant Hill $.617 $58.50 

Bondurant $.638 $60.48 Unincorporated 
Polk County $.493 $46.79 

Clive $.570 $54.06 Urbandale $.628 $59.55 

Des Moines $.95 + 
$2,049,416 $90.12 West Des Moines $.95 + 

$19,284 $90.12 

Grimes $0 $.0 Windsor Heights $.95 + 
$16,873 $90.12 

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 74



ACTION ITEM 
7A: Certify the Proposed FY2026 DART Budget and the FY2026 Regional 
Transit 

Authority Tax Levy Rates 

Recommendation: • Certify the Proposed FY 2026 Budget and Regional Transit Authority Tax Levy Rates as
presented.

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 75



DISCUSSION ITEM 
 

8A: Reimagine DART Budget Scenarios and Legislative Update 

Staff Resource: Erin Hockman, Chief Strategy Officer 

 
Staff will present updated Reimagine DART budget scenarios and a legislative update.   

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 76



PRESENTATION 
 

9A: Jarrett Walker & Associates 

Staff Resource: Erin Hockman, Chief Strategy Officer 

 
Ricky Angueira, Principal Associate at Jarrett Walker + Associates, will present the Reimagine 
DART concepts to the DART Commission.   

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 77



 MONTHLY REPORT 
 

10A: Operations & Planning Team Report 

Staff Resources: Luis Montoya, Chief Operating and Planning Officer  

 
On-Time Performance (OTP):  Dispatchers and operation supervisors continue to work to improve 
reliability and service quality by coaching operators on best practices to help them stay on-time. 
January and February on-time performance was markedly better than the preceding months.  
 
UZURV: UZURV began as a paratransit overflow contractor with DART last November. Their on-time 
performance is consistently between 95-100%, however, they have struggled to complete all the 
trips that DART assigns to them due to driver availability. UZURV averages $30-$35 per trip and has 
performed roughly 50% of the trips assigned. DART is working with UZURV to try and maintain lower 
delivery cost service but improve reliability.  
 
Willie Richardson Retirement:  Fixed Route operator Willie Richardson will retired from DART after 
22 years of service at DART on April 4, 2025. He obtained a milestone of 22 years of safe driving 
without a preventable accident during his tenure. Willie is looking forward to traveling and fishing.  
 
Pat Daly Retirement:  Pat Daly retired from DART after 11 years of service at DART. Pat has held 
various roles at DART, most notably as Safey Manager, where he transformed DART’s safety culture 
through analysis of accidents, targeted training, and countless field observations and coaching 
of operators. Thanks to Pat’s efforts, DART has seen a decrease in injuries to staff and members of 
the public, and a decrease in costs from claims and payouts.   
 
New Dispatchers: We are excited to announce two new dispatchers joining the Operations team. 
First, Nico Barnhill has been at DART since June of 2012 and has worked as a Fixed Route operator 
and as a Customer Service representative. Second, Julie Gonzalez comes to DART with several 
years of dispatch experience and customer service in the trucking industry.  
 

Transit Employee Appreciation Day 
(TEAD): On March 18, 2025, DART had the 
opportunity to show its appreciation to 
all transit employees who provide 
reliable and customer-focused service 
each and every day. Leadership team 
members signed up to thank our 
employees for their dedication by 
“popping in” to provide coffee, fruit, and 
popcorn throughout the day.  
 
 
  
 
 

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 78



 MONTHLY REPORT 
 

10A1: Phase I Operations and Maintenance Facility Report 
3500 Vandalia Road, Des Moines, Iowa 50309 

Staff Resources: 
Mike Gulick, Interim Finance Lead/Senior Manager, Procurement and 
Compliance   
Luis Montaya, Chief Operating and Planning Officer 

   

Construction Activities 

• Progress Update:  

o Continued vertical setting of Precast, Steel Columns, Beams, and Joist happen as they 
are delivered. Everything is going well and will continue for the next couple of weeks. 

o Will begin roadway and parking preparations in the  next two weeks. 

o May update will include pictures of progress as the building will be largely enclosed by 
the next Commission meeting. 

Financial Management Update 

• Budget Status: On-track; expended $14,633,938 of approved $34,789,700. See Phase I Budget 
attachment in the packet for details. 

o See the Feb 2025 construction progress payments attachment for details.  
 

• Change Orders:  
o October 2024: None. 
o November 2024: None 
o December 2024: Three (3) complete 
o January 2025: None 
o February 2025: None 
o March 2025: Five (5) pending most will reduce costs. 

 
• Funding Plan: On-Track. 

 

Issues & Risk Management  

• None currently. 

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 79



Operations and Maintenance Facility Phase I Construction Budget (as of 3/10/2025)
Project Overview:
Project Name
Project Location
Project Description
Occupancy Date

Original Budget Adjusted Budget 1.17.2024 Expenditures to Date*
$3,918,362.00 $3,918,362.00 $3,871,685.00
$3,910,000.00 $3,910,000.00 $3,861,078.00

$7,500.00 $7,500.00 $9,900.00
$862.00 $862.00 $707.00

$5,665,653.61 $5,665,653.61 $3,672,200.49
Owner's Representation: Sidekick Development LLC $380,000.00 $380,000.00 $238,000.00

$380,000.00 $380,000.00 $238,000.00

Architect: Substance, LLC $2,618,837.61 $2,618,837.61 $2,493,836.89
$2,618,837.61 $2,618,837.61 $2,493,086.51

$750.38
Construction Manager (as Agent): DCI Group Inc $2,666,816.00 $2,666,816.00 $940,363.60

$810,000.00 $810,000.00 $211,687.50
$1,856,816.00 $1,856,816.00 $728,676.10

Construction Costs: Prime Contractor $22,048,536.24 $22,697,252.51 $6,973,374.13
Tree Clearing Wright Outdoor Solutions $4,896.49 $4,896.49 $4,896.49
Special Testing Terracon $0.00 $29,259.00 $1,411,227.00
BP01 - Site demolition, Earthwork, Utilities & Landscaping Elder Corporation $2,073,700.00 $2,091,900.00 $1,279,133.00
BP02 - Concrete & paving Absolute Group $2,669,844.75 $2,669,844.75 $315,580.00
BP03 - Masonry Forrest & Associate Inc $516,210.00 $516,210.00 $4,573.00
BP04 - Steel and precast Total PDM Precast Inc $3,563,092.00 $3,563,092.00 $2,952,401.00
BP05 - General carpentry & finishes Core Construction Services LLC $892,000.00 $906,282.27 $7,471.00
BP06 - Roofing T&K Roofing Company $940,000.00 $940,000.00 $9,683.00
BP07 - Overhead & coiling doors Adams Door Company $318,713.00 $318,713.00
BP09 - Exterior fencing Des Moines Steet Fence Co Inc $224,900.00 $224,900.00
BP10 - Fire suppression Elite Fire $296,880.00 $296,880.00 $20,000.00
BP11 - Electrical Kline Electric $3,411,300.00 $3,411,300.00 $116,909.64
BP12 - Mechanical and plumbing Baker Mechancial Inc $5,600,000.00 $5,600,000.00 $851,500.00
BP13 - Equipment Seneca Companines $1,537,000.00 $2,123,975.00

$1,718,838.63 $1,550,000.00 $0.00
$1,218,838.63 $1,200,000.00

$500,000.00 $350,000.00
$987,000.00 $555,000.00 $0.00
$732,000.00 $400,000.00
$20,000.00 $20,000.00

$200,000.00 $100,000.00
$35,000.00 $35,000.00
$60,000.00 $50,000.00 $45,558.90
$10,000.00 $10,000.00 $13,515.90
$50,000.00 $40,000.00 $32,043.00

$400,341.52 $362,464.00 $71,120.25
$400,341.52 $362,464.00 $71,120.25

Grand Total Construction Budget:
$34,798,732.00 $34,798,732.12 $14,633,938.77

Commission Approved Budget (September 5, 2023) $34,789,700.00

*includes retainage for Prime Contractors Construction Costs $201,281.56

Legal Fees
Insurance Premiums
Non-Allocated Contingency and Escalation:
Reserved fund for unexpected costs

Sum of all the above categories

Legal and Insurance:

Reimbursable Expenses

Construction Management Fixed Fee
General Conditions Costs

Allocated Contingency and Escalation:
Construction Contingency
Design Contingency
Project Soft Costs:
Furniture, Fixtures, and Equipment (FFE) OFOI
Moving and Relocation Costs
IT Infrastructure 
Training Costs/Commissoning

Architectural & Engineering  Design Fees

Phase I Maintenance & Parts
3500 Vandalia Road, Des Moines, IA 50319

Building 76,848 sqft / Driveway & Parking 102,500 sqft
May 2026

Land Acquisition Costs:
Land Acquisition Costs
Land Assessment Costs
Permitting Fees
Architect & Engineering / Constuction Manger Costs:

Project Management Fees
Reimbursable Expenses

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 80



DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 81



 MONTHLY REPORT 
 

10B External Affairs Team Report 

Staff Resources: Erin Hockman, Chief Strategy Officer 

 
Reimagine DART Budget Scenarios: At the Commission’s request, staff developed a third 
Reimagine DART budget scenario that limits property tax revenue growth to 4% each year. Staff 
will present all three budget scenarios at the April 1 Commission meeting and ask the Commission 
to provide budget direction for the Draft Network at its Special Meeting on May 19. The scenarios 
under consideration include:  

 
a) Status Quo Budget that maintains existing service levels at a 4% annual expense 

growth, which requires 5% annual property tax revenue growth.  
b) Smaller Network A that reduces service by 20-25%. After service reductions take effect 

in FY27, annual expense growth would be 4% and property tax revenue growth would 
be 5%.  

c) Smaller Network B that reduces service between 15-20%. After service reductions take 
effect in FY27, annual expense growth would be ~3% and property tax revenue growth 
would be limited to 4%.  

 

HSB 313 and SSB 1208: In addition to the above scenarios, staff have determined there are two 
key impacts to DART:  

1) A 2% growth cap on the transit property tax levy would require approximately a 30-40% 
reduction in service to maintain a balanced budget during the first five years the changes 
would take effect. That’s because any decrease in revenue has a compounding impact 
on other parts of our budget, including fare revenue and our ability to operate service 
efficiently. Additional service reductions would be required after five years. 
   

2) DART would not be able to fully implement the funding formula because the Department 
of Management has advised that as written the 2% growth cap would be applied to each 
individual community’s property tax revenue and not to the total property tax revenue 
DART collects. This means that several communities expecting their levy rate to decrease 
as the formula is implemented either won’t see their levy rate decrease as projected or 
DART will need to cut more service.   

 
DART CEO Amanda Wanke spoke at House and Senate Ways and Means subcommittee meetings 
on March 26 to outline how the proposed bills would impact DART. We are working with our 
lobbyists to schedule follow-up meetings to discuss potential solutions that would minimize the 
impact to DART.  

 

Marketing & Communications – Sarah Welch, Senior Marketing & Communications Manager 

Reimagine DART Public Input: DART is holding eight public meetings throughout April to collect 
feedback on the two Reimagine DART Concepts. The public meeting schedule is: 
 

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 82



MONTHLY REPORT  
10B: External Affairs Team Report 
 

• April 9, 6 – 7 p.m., East Side Library   
• April 10, 5 – 6 p.m., Ankeny Kirkendall Public Library   
• April 14, 6 – 7 p.m., Forest Avenue Library   
• April 15, 5:30 – 6:30 p.m., LINK Associates in West Des Moines   
• April 17, 11:30 a.m. – 1 p.m., DART Central Station   
• April 22, 6 – 7 p.m., Des Moines Area Religious Council (DMARC)   
• April 24, 6 – 7 p.m., Virtual (Zoom)   
• April 28, 5 – 6 p.m., Urbandale Public Library  
 

In addition to public meetings, riders are being asked to complete a short survey. The concepts 
and survey will be available following the April 1 Commission meeting at reimaginedartdsm.com.  

 
DART in the News 
 
Des Moines’ franchise fee could increase to fund DART. What does that mean for residents? 
Des Moines Register, 02/25/2025 
 
Matt Harris - Senior Community Relations Manager 

Multimodal Economic Impact Study: DART and the Des Moines Area MPO held a kick-off meeting 
with Metro Analytics in March for the multimodal economic impact study of central Iowa’s 
transportation network. An initial report will be available towards the end of April. Metro Analytics 
will be in town during this time to hold a Transportation Economics Workshop with selected DART 
and MPO board members to review the methodology and data used in the study.  

 
New Unlimited Access partner: Great Oaks High School and Career Center, located at Park Fair 
Mall in Des Moines, has signed a letter of intent for an Unlimited Access partnership with DART. This 
partnership will offer free, unlimited use of DART fixed route bus service to Great Oaks students and 
staff.  

 
 

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 83

http://www.reimaginedartdsm.com/
https://www.desmoinesregister.com/story/news/local/des-moines/2025/02/25/des-moines-council-to-consider-raising-utility-fee-to-finance-dart/78963682007/


 MONTHLY REPORT 
 

10C: Human Resources/Training/Safety Team/Customer Service Report 

Staff Resources: Kelley Burgess – Chief People Officer 

Employee Recognition 

Employee of the Month Recognition: The receipient of DART’s February Employee of the 
Month award is Fixed Route Operator Sherrione Moore. She is recognized for showcasing 
the value of Adaptability last month. After one of our Paratransit service partners became 
backed up, a rider was stranded for more than an hour. Sherrione adapted by stepping up 
at the end of her shift and made an extra trip to get the rider home. Thank you, Sherrione, 
for being responsive to our riders' needs and demonstrating our values! 

 

 

                            

Mobility Services Manager Skip Herbold presenting award to Sherrione Moore. 
 

Human Resources – Alaina Severino, Human Resources Manager 

FY26 Benefit Plan Design: We received our annual medical insurance renewal from Wellmark, 
which came in at 16.1% increase. This is lower than expected, but still quite high,  primarily due 
to an unfavorable claims history over the previous three year experience period. Along with 
our benefits broker, True North, we have been analyzing various plan design changes and 
alternative options to our existing benefit offering. We sought competitive quotes from three 
other medical carriers, evaluated streamlining of services with current vendors, considered 
alternative options within plan design to further reduce cost, and reviewed ancillary plans. We 
will be making decisions on any plan changes in the next two weeks.  
 
Recruitment Update: The HR department is currently interviewing for the following openings: 

o Bus Operator (Para & Fixed) 

o Operations Dispatcher   

Recent Hires:  
o 1 – Fixed Route Operators   - 1 – Creative Project Manager 

o 1 – Service Person    - 1 – Maintenance Technician 

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 84



MONTHLY REPORT 
10C: Human Resources/Training/Safety/Customer Service Team Report 

 
o 4 – Mobility Services Operator  - 1 – Transit Police Officer 

o 1 – Building and Grounds Person 

Training – Matt Johnson, Training Manager 

Leadership Development Pathway Development: DART has partnered with Drake to develop a 
leadership pathway for DART staff. This will be used to provide a development pathway to grow 
leadership skills and competencies.   

 
Partnership with DMACC for CDL Testing: DART has partnered with DMACC transportation to 
complete CDL testing. This has dramatically reduced the time to complete training for those 
working to obtain their license.  
 
Safety – Jake Comstock, Safety Manager 

New Safety and Training Specialist: Abbey McAllister has joined the Safety Team as DART’s new 
Safety and Training Specialist. Abbey joins DART with an extensive background in workplace 
safety. 
 

Customer Experience – Alyson Reimers, Customer Service Supervisor 

Service Levels: We continue to remain consistent with a service level percentage above the 80% 
target. February 2024, our SL was 68%, February of this year it was 81%. 

 

  

 

Service Level: The percentage of calls answered within 60 seconds. 
  

 

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Fe
b-

24

M
ar

-2
4

Ap
r-

24

M
ay

-2
4

Ju
n-

24

Ju
l-2

4

Au
g-

24

Se
p-

24

O
ct

-2
4

N
ov

-2
4

De
c-

24

Ja
n-

25

Fe
b-

25

Monthly Service Level %

0

2000

4000

6000

8000

10000

Fe
b-

24
M

ar
-2

4
Ap

r-
24

M
ay

-2
4

Ju
n-

24
Ju

l-2
4

Au
g-

24
Se

p-
24

O
ct

-2
4

N
ov

-2
4

D
ec

-2
4

Ja
n-

25
Fe

b-
25

Monthly Call Volume

2 4 6 8 10 12 14

Complaint - Driver Rudeness
Complaint - Passenger Passed Up

Top Complaints

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 85



 MONTHLY REPORT 

10D: Chief Executive Officer 

Staff Resource: Amanda Wanke, Chief Executive Officer 

• DART Executive Committee: The DART Executive Committee met on Tuesday, March 25, 2025.
The discussion items presented during the meeting included:

o Pleasant Hill Withdrawal
o Reimagine DART Update
o Legislative Update
o CEO Review and Timeline

• Federal Transit Administration Triennial Review: we were informed in early March that the FTA
would conduct their triennial review of DART. Over the past month staff have worked diligently
to meet our federal deadline for all documents for our pre-site preparation phase. I am happy
to share that we submitted all required documents by the deadline and want to thank
everyone that had a part in making this happen. I would like to particularly thank Mike Gulick,
Interim Finance Lead/Senior Procurement and Compliance Manager, for leading the project
thoughtfully and having a successful outcome for phase one of the review. The next step will
be FTA coming onsite to DART where we will have a final review/findings. We expect this to
happen in June and we will update the DART Commission appropriately.

• APTA Transit CEO Seminar: I attended the APTA’s CEO seminar March 21-23, during which I
had an opportunity to connect with and learn from transit CEOs from across the country. The
conference agenda focused on many of the critical challenges facing the industry and the C-
Suite including but not limited to the state of the industry, employee safety, impacts of the
election on transit funding, and board and labor relations.

• Iowa Public Transit Association (IPTA) DC Fly-In: I attended the IPTA DC Fly-In which occurred
in Washington, DC on March 20. During the fly-in, we had an opportunity to meet with Iowa
Congressional delegation staff to further build relationships and advocate for transit, as well
as discussing and learning from other federal and industry leaders. Much of the conversation
was related to the current political climate and the effects it is having on public
transportation and working together to come up with solutions.

• Fuse DSM: On March 6, I had the honor to speak at the Fuse DSM breakfast meeting where I
had the opportunity to share how DART has evolved over the years, the importance of public
transit in our region and Reimagine DART. The information was well received and generated
many questions and interest about DART.

• DART Kudos: Over the last month, we have had two separate occasions in which DART has
been informed of two missing youths in the metro. I am very proud to share that on both
occasions, DART staff were able to locate and reunite them with their families and one of the
parents shared that they were “elated with the top tier service” provided during their less-than-
ideal moment in regard to their loved one.

• DART Roadeo/Opportunity to Drive a Bus – Our annual DART Roadeo in which bus operators
put their driving skills to the test by driving an obstacle course is on Saturday, May 17 from
approx. 8am-noon at the Iowa State Fairgrounds. We welcome any Commissioners or familyDART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 86



MONTHLY REPORT 
10D:   Chief Executive Report 

members that would like to attend as spectators to cheer on our drivers on! Additionally, as 
part of our annual DART Roadeo, we would once again like to invite DART Commissioner’s and 
stakeholders to have the opportunity to drive a bus. We will be looking to confirm a date and 
time on either Thursday, May 15 or Friday May 16, which we will communicate as soon as 
possible. 

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 87



 MONTHLY REPORT 
 
 

10E: Performance Report – February 2025 

Staff Resource: Nate Bleadorn, Business Intelligence Manager 

   

Summary of February 2025 Monthly Performance: 

• Total February ridership was down 13.89% compared to last February---mostly due to weather 
and DMPS school service changes—and up 6.22% YTD. There was a snow day and an 
unscheduled early dismissal and late start for Des Moines Public Schools. 

o Fixed Route ridership was down 13.68% compared to February of last year. 

o Paratransit ridership was 21.26% lower compared to prior year.  

o DART On Demand ridership was down 13.99% compared to prior year.  

o Caravan ridership for February was down 11.91% compared to prior year. 

• Preventable accidents were .55 per 100,000 miles in February. We are at 1.09 preventable 
accidents YTD, just over our goal of 1. Our monthly non-preventable accidents were 2.20 per 
100,000 miles in February.   

• On-Time Performance (OTP) was 83.27% in February. We are at 79.90% YTD, against our goal 
of 85%. DART bus operators continue to be coached on best practices to manage their time 
to minimize delays. Our planning team and supervisors also continue their work to manage 
detours, weather events, and traffic conditions. 

• Road calls per 100,000 miles, when buses need service while in operation, were 6.22 for fixed 
route in February. This meets our goal of seve or fewer. 

• Note: DART On Demand average wait time and first-time rider numbers are incorrect due to 
a vendor (VIA) backend change to data formatting that we are actively updating our 
dashboards to accommodate. 

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 88



Monthly

255,141
FY24: 296,300 (-13.89%)

YTD

2,570,559
FY24: 2,419,982 (+6.22%)

Ridership

YTD

1.09
FY24: 0.69 (-58.28%)

Preventable Accidents/100k Miles

Monthly

2.20
FY24: 0.75 (-194.86%)

YTD

1.12
FY24: 1.50 (+25.32%)

Non-Preventable Accidents/100k

Monthly

83.27%
FY24: 80.84% (+3.01%)

YTD

79.90%
FY24: 78.06% (+2.36%)

On-Time Performance

Monthly

12.37%
FY24: 13.62% (-9.19%)

YTD

15.66%
FY24: 15.18% (+3.16%)

Farebox Recovery Ratio

Monthly

15.53
FY24: 16.74 (-7.25%)

YTD

17.88
FY24: 16.49 (+8.39%)

FR Passengers / Revenue Hour

0

10

20

Date

Jul 2024 Jan 2025

Current Year Prior Year
10%

15%

20%

Year

Jul 2024 Jan 2025

70%

80%

90%

Date

Jul 2024 Jan 2025

Current Year Prior Year

0

2

4

Date

Jul 2024 Jan 2025

Current Year Prior Year

0

1

2

Date

Jul 2024 Jan 2025

Current Year Prior Year

200K

400K

600K

Date

Jul 2024 Jan 2025

Current Year Prior Year

Performance Summary - 3/1/2024 2/28/2025

Monthly

0.55
FY24: 0.50 (-10.57%)

February 2025

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 89



Fixed Route Performance

0K

200K

400K

Date

Jul 2024 Jan 2025

Current Year Prior Year

Ridership

YTD

2,454,820
FY24: 2,299,800 (+6.74%)

Monthly

241,432
FY24: 279,682 (-13.68%)

70%

75%

80%

85%

90%

Date

Jul 2024 Jan 2025

Current Year Prior Year

On-Time Performance

YTD

79.03%
FY24: 77.32% (+2.21%)

Monthly

82.65%
FY24: 80.00% (+3.31%)

$50

$100

$150

Date

Jul 2024 Jan 2025

Current Year Prior Year

Operating Cost/Rev. Hour

YTD

$155.04
FY24: $150.18 (-3.23%)

Monthly

$160.11
FY24: $155.75 (-2.8%)

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

Date

Jul 2024 Jan 2025

Current Year Prior Year

Preventable Acc./100k

YTD

1.32
FY24: 0.89 (-48.67%)

Monthly

0.00
FY24: 0.39 (+100%)

0.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

Date

Jul 2024 Jan 2025

Current Year Prior Year

Non-Preventable Acc./100k

YTD

1.46
FY24: 1.96 (+25.54%)

Monthly

2.90
FY24: 0.77 (-276.72%)

0

10

20

30

Date

Jul 2024 Jan 2025

Current Year Prior Year

Complaints/100k Passengers

YTD

16.42
FY24: 18.44 (+10.95%)

Monthly

16.15
FY24: 17.88 (+9.64%)

0

5

10

15

Date

Jul 2024 Jan 2025

Current Year Prior Year

Road Calls/100k Miles

YTD

8.06
FY24: 11.08 (+27.21%)

Monthly

6.22
FY24: 10.02 (+37.9%)

Monthly Ridership by Fare
Group

Fares and
Passes

DMPS
Students

Unlimited
Access

Free
Shuttle

12
9.7

6K

69
.32

K

41
.67

K

1.4
5K

15
5.1

K

72
.63

K

44
.21

K

6.6
8K

Current Year Prior Year

3/1/2024 2/28/2025

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 90



Paratransit Performance

0K

5K

10K

Date

Jul 2024 Jan 2025

Current Year Prior Year

Ridership

YTD

64,848
FY24: 66,160 (-1.98%)

Monthly

7,489
FY24: 9,511.00 (-21.26%)

85%

90%

95%

Date

Jul 2024 Jan 2025

Current Year Prior Year

On-Time Performance

YTD

94.72%
FY24: 89.97% (+5.28%)

Monthly

94.50%
FY24: 93.17% (+1.42%)

$0

$20

$40

$60

Date

Jul 2024 Jan 2025

Current Year Prior Year

Operating Cost/Passenger

YTD

$56.04
FY24: $53.52 (-4.72%)

Monthly

$57.86
FY24: $46.00 (-25.78%)

0

1

2

3

Date

Jul 2024 Jan 2025

Current Year Prior Year

Preventable Acc./100k

YTD

0.94
FY24: 0.45 (-107.96%)

Monthly

2.60
FY24: 1.17 (-122.15%)

0

1

2

3

Date

Jul 2024 Jan 2025

Current Year Prior Year

Non-Preventable Acc./100k

YTD

0.47
FY24: 0.90 (+48.01%)

Monthly

1.30
FY24: 1.17 (-11.07%)

RideShare - Ridership

YTD

37,081
FY24: 39,946 (-7.17%)

Monthly

4,542
FY24: 5,156 (-11.91%)

RideShare - Op. Cost/Passenger*

YTD

$14.15
FY24: $12.30 (-15.02%)

Monthly

$17.42
FY24: $11.86 (-46.9%)

RideShare - Ridership

YTD

37,081
FY24: 39,946 (-7.17%)

Monthly

4,542
FY24: 5,156 (-11.91%)

RideShare - Op. Cost/Passenger*

YTD

$14.15
FY24: $12.30 (-15.02%)

Monthly

$17.42
FY24: $11.86 (-46.9%)

0K

2K

4K

Date

Jul 2024 Jan 2025

Current Year Prior Year
$0.00

$5.00

$10.00

$15.00

$20.00

Date

Jul 2024 Jan 2025

Current Year Prior Year

3/1/2024 2/28/2025

Paratransit Customer Type
Breakdown

0%

50%

100%

Jul 2024 Jan 2025

6%
6%

13%

8%
10% 5%

4%

Bus Plus Medicaid Other Polk County

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 91



Monthly

1678
FY24: 1951 (-13.99%)

YTD

13810
FY24: 14076 (-1.89%)

Completed Trips

Monthly

(Blank)
FY24: 15.39 (+100%)

YTD

15.16
FY24: 14.31 (-5.96%)

Avg. Wait Time (On Demand)

Monthly

84.05%
FY24: 88.79% (-5.34%)

YTD

85.89%
FY24: 84.87% (+1.21%)

Mobile Booking Rate

Monthly

181
FY24: 180 (+0.56%)

YTD

420
FY24: 404 (+3.96%)

Unique Active Riders

Monthly

28
FY24: 41 (-31.71%)

YTD

366
FY24: 466 (-21.46%)

New Accounts Created

Monthly

1
FY24: 22 (-95.45%)

YTD

151
FY24: 169 (-10.65%)

First Time Riders

10

15

20

Year

Jul 2024 Jan 2025

Current Year Prior Year

0

100

Year

Jul 2024 Jan 2025

Current Year Prior Year

150

200

Year

Jul 2024 Jan 2025

Current Year Prior Year

80%

90%

Year

Jul 2024 Jan 2025

Prior Year Current Year

10

20

30

Year

M
in

u
te

s

Jul 2024 Jan 2025

Current Year Prior Year

0K

1K

2K

Year

Jul 2024 Jan 2025

Current Year Prior Year

DART On Demand Performance 3/1/2024 2/28/2025Booking Type

All 

Request Zone

All 

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 92



Program Route

 

Month
Ridership

Month Last
Year

YTD Ridership Last Year YTD
Ridership

YTD Change YTD Change
%

YTD Passengers/
Revenue Hour

YTD On-Time
Performance

1. Local #1 - Fairgrounds 10,976 11,473 368,145 324,007 44,138 13.6% 32.02 59.75%
#2 - Maury St 119 22 1,092 22 1,070 4863.6% 3.01 81.09%
#3 - University 22,244 25,777 210,524 199,810 10,714 5.4% 17.22 76.64%
#4 - E. 14th 10,416 11,031 95,913 87,318 8,595 9.8% 14.44 81.82%
#5 - Franklin Ave/Johnston 10,914 12,042 89,610 86,819 2,791 3.2% 11.41 79.40%
#6 - Indianola 24,462 29,212 216,381 191,491 24,890 13.0% 25.52 89.08%
#7 - SW 9th St. 26,396 28,132 232,157 215,644 16,513 7.7% 29.53 88.89%
#8 - Fleur Dr. 2,211 2,737 19,375 22,286 -2,911 -13.1% 14.75 82.35%
#10 - East University 1,010 1,517 9,937 9,629 308 3.2% 9.04 87.01%
#11 - Ingersoll/Valley Junction 3,482 4,161 26,878 27,708 -830 -3.0% 19.31 68.87%
#13 - Evergreen 4,847 5,933 37,991 36,001 1,990 5.5% 45.98 81.07%
#14 - Beaver Ave. 13,223 14,911 111,571 108,280 3,291 3.0% 15.74 85.23%
#15 - 6th Ave. 18,597 22,139 153,672 151,531 2,141 1.4% 23.89 78.61%
#16 - Douglas Ave. 26,341 30,298 228,422 223,383 5,039 2.3% 19.27 77.11%
#17 - Hubbell Ave. 18,089 21,885 164,875 166,711 -1,836 -1.1% 15.72 79.56%
#50 - Euclid 4,885 5,871 43,747 47,624 -3,877 -8.1% 8.40 82.56%
#52 - Valley West/Jordan Creek 10,098 10,693 98,299 88,246 10,053 11.4% 11.54 78.50%
#60 - Ingersoll/University 24,474 24,776 189,952 180,496 9,456 5.2% 16.18 75.64%
#72 - West Des Moines Loop 2,296 2,855 22,503 21,738 765 3.5% 6.40 83.08%
#74 - NW Urbandale 280 402 2,990 3,163 -173 -5.5% 3.03 83.97%

2. Shuttle Link Shuttle 809 1,085 6,516 6,648 -132 -2.0% 2.97 74.38%
Downtown Shuttle 4,937 20,847 42,297 -21,450 -50.7% 7.47 81.72%

3. Express #92 - Hickman 654 960 3,762 4,799 -1,037 -21.6% 4.67 72.80%
#93 - NW 86th 1,409 608 8,398 6,419 1,979 30.8% 5.78 76.52%
#94 - Westown 352 356 2,691 2,899 -208 -7.2% 5.05 83.10%
#95 - Vista 226 600 1,604 2,107 -503 -23.9% 4.12 75.52%
#96 - E.P. True 584 809 5,025 5,342 -317 -5.9% 6.25 77.76%
#98 - Ankeny 1,741 2,107 15,635 14,931 704 4.7% 6.80 78.06%
#99 - Altoona 247 374 3,077 2,344 733 31.3% 4.73 78.95%

5. On Call Ankeny
NW Johnston / Grimes
Regional 54 107 107 Infinity 18.51 77.59%

6. DART On Demand #31 - DART On Demand - Jordan Creek 17 -17 -100.0%
#32 - DART On Demand - River Bend 7 97 -97 -100.0%
DART On Demand - Ankeny 1,678 1,967 13,514 14,028 -514 -3.7% 3.35

Cab Paratransit: Taxi 619 1,041 5,913 7,995 -2,082 -26.0% 3.40
Paratransit Paratransit: Bus/Van 6,321 7,767 56,554 57,608 -1,054 -1.8% 1.82 94.72%
RideShare RideShare 4,542 5,156 37,081 39,946 -2,865 -7.2% 5.16
TNC UZURV 549 1,645 1,645 Infinity 2.97
Total 255,694 293,641 2,508,475 2,399,384 109,091 4.5% 13.78 79.90%

Route Details Month

February 2025 

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 93



FUTURE DART COMMISSION ITEMS 

Future Agenda Items: 

May 6, 2025 – 12:00 P.M. (2 hr. meeting) 

Consent/Action Items Information Items 
• Des Moines Public Schools Services Contract
• Transportation Improvement Program (TIP)

Approval FY2026
• Network Equipment Purchase
• Health Insurance Renewal
• DART General Reserve Fund

• Transit Advisory Committee Update
• Reimagine DART – Preliminary Public Input

Results
• Reimagine DART Budget Scenarios and

Legislative Update
• August Service Change
• Zero Emissions Plan Update
• UZURV Update

June 3, 2025 – 12:00 P.M. 

Consent/Action Items Information Items 
• FTA FY 2025 Buses and Bus Facilities Grants

Program Application
• August Service Change 

• Transit Riders Advisory Committee Update

July 8, 2025 – 12:00 P.M. 

Consent/Action Items Information Items 
• ICAP Renewal
• Privacy Policy

• Transit Advisory Committee Update
• November Service Change Update
• Iowa State Fair Updates/Reminders

Upcoming DART Commission Meetings: 

MEETING DATE TIME LOCATION 

DART Executive Committee 
Meeting  Wednesday, April 16, 2025 12:00 P.M. Zoom 

Special DART Commission 
Meeting Monday, May 19, 2025 12:00 P.M. DART Central 

Station/Zoom 

Special DART Commission 
Meeting Monday, September 22, 2025 12:00 P.M. DART Central 

Station/Zoom 

DART Commission Packet - April 1, 2025 94


	Chair Connie Boesen called the meeting to order at 12:00 p.m. Roll call was taken, and a quorum was present.
	ACTION ITEMS
	9A – Bus Disposal Strategy
	6E1 - 2025 DART Title VI Program_KH - TF-aw.pdf
	1  Introduction
	2  General Requirements & Guidelines
	2.1 Annual Title VI Certification and Assurance
	2.2  Title VI Notice
	2.3  Title VI Complaint Procedures
	2.4  Record of Title VI Investigations, Complaints, and Lawsuits

	3  Public Participation Plan
	3.1  Purpose
	3.2  Goals
	3.3  Principles
	3.4  Public Input Policy
	3.5  Customer Preferences
	3.6  Direct Communication Methods
	3.7  Methods of Involving the Public
	3.8  Selection of meeting times and locations
	3.9  June 2022 – March 2025 Outreach
	3.10  Translation and Interpretive Services
	3.11  DART Partners
	3.12  Equity Considerations
	3.13  Outcomes
	3.14  Conclusion

	4   Limited English Proficiency (LEP) and Language Assistance
	4.1  Four Factor Framework Analysis
	4.2  Implementation Plan
	4.3  Monitoring and Updating the Language Assistance Plan

	5  Racial Breakdown of Non-Elected Committees
	6  Efforts to Ensure Subrecipient Compliance with Title VI
	7 Title VI Program-Specific Requirements for Transit Providers
	7.1  Requirements to Set Service Standards and Service Policies
	7.2  Collection of Demographic Data
	7.3  Results of Program Monitoring and Reports
	7.4  Public Engagement Process for Setting Major Service Change Policy, Disparate Impact Policy, and Disproportionate Burden Policy
	7.5  Major Service Change, Disparate Impact Policy, & Disproportionate Burden Policy
	7.6  Results of Service Analysis and/or Fare Equity Analysis since Last Submission

	8  DART Commission Approval of Title VI Program
	Appendices

	ADP8530.tmp
	February 2025

	ADP6BDA.tmp
	10B

	ADPBD46.tmp
	12D:

	ADPA87B.tmp
	NOTICE OF COMMISSION ANNUAL MEETING AND AGENDA




